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The Board of Directors

New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited,

A-27, 2nd Floor, Mohan Co-operative Industrial Estate,
New Delhi-110 044

Sir,

Sub; Communication of UDIN for audited standalone financial statement for the FY 2021-22

As per the guidelines issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (ICAI) for the audits,
we are required to generate UDIN and to communicate such generated UDIN to “Management” or
“Those Charged with Governance” for disseminating it to the stakeholders from their end.

Accordingly, piease find below UDIN for audited standalone financial statement for the FY 2021-22
signed by us on May 19, 2022,

UDiN: 22518499AJLHTX2938

ey

forJ P Chawla & Co. LLP 5 >
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/N500025

per Richa Chawla
{Partner)

Membership No. 518499

Place: Noida
Date; 23-05-2022

J P Chawla & Co. LLP is registered with limited
liability with identification number AAE-2281,
Reqd. off. at 43, Daryaganj, New Deft 110002, india

B-151, 3rd Flr, Seclor-8, Noida 201301, U P. india
Tel. +91 120 4573207 E-mail; info@jpc.co.in
Web: www pc.co.in
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF NEW SARASWATI HOUSE (iNDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of NEW SARASWATI HOUSE
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED {the “Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022,
the Statement of Profit and Loss (inciuding Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes
in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date and a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information {hereinafter referred to as the “standalone
financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
{the “Act”} in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022 and its profit, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (“SA”s) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (“ICAI”) together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these reguirements and the ICAF's Code of Ethics. We believe that

the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion
on the standalone financial statements.

information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s Report
including Annexures to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and

Shareholder’s Information, but does not include the consolidated financial statements, standalone
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

J P Chawla & Co. LLP is registered with fimiled B-151, 3rd F, Sector-6, Noi ;
liability with identification number AAE-2281. o1 120 e ot WP India

Tel. +81 120 4573207 E-mail: info@ipc.co.i
Rega. off. at 43, Daryagan], New Delhi 1100072, India Web: www.|pe.co.in 207 Enal: lo@jpe.coi
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Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. The Board of Director’s report is not made available to
us as at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance, including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting principles
general!y accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting frauds and other frregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reascnable and
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true
and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do SO.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
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* Identify and assess the risks of materiai misstatement of the standalone financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

* Obtain an understanding of internal financial controt relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. if we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company 1o tease to continue as a going concern,

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user
of the standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider guantitative materiality and
qualitative factors in (i} planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work;
and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all refationships and

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements3

1) Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:

a)

b)

c)

d)

f)

g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our Opinion, proper books of accounts as required by law have been kept by the
company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

tn our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Ind AS
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the Basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2022 taken on record by the board of Directors, none of the directors s

disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section
164(2) of the Act,

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls over financial
reporting.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance
with the requirements of Section 197{16) of the Act, as amended, In our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with
the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our

opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us:

i.  The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

it. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. {a) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate) have been
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advanced or loaned or invested {either from borrowed funds or share premium or
any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person or
entity, including foreign entity (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(b) The Management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds (which are material either individually or in the aggregate} have been
received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entity
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

{c) Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused
us to believe that the representations under sub-clause {i) and {ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b} above, contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company, accordingly
compliances with section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 need not to be complied
with by the Company.

2) As required by the Companies {Auditor’'s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”) issued by the
Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/NSODOZS__M_M

Partner

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 19" May 2022
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ANNEXURE “A” TO THE iNDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1{f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section
of our report to the Members of New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited Report on the Internal

Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause {i) of sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of NEW SARASWAT! HOUSE
(INDIA) PRIVATE LIMITED {the “Company”) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Com pany for the year ended on that date,

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants
of india {the “ICAI"). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the

accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an epinion on the Company’s internat financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Einancial Reporting {the “Guidance Note”)
issued by the ICAl and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143{10) of the Companies
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material
respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
internal financial controls over financia! reporting included obtaining an understanding of internat
financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures sefected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financia! reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company: (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
{3} provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the criteria for internal financial control over financial
reporting established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated

in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financia! Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
ICAI

ForJ P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/N500025

s

i
per Richa Chawla \7:/\_ o
Partner RA

ol {(UP) @

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 15" May 2022
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of
our report to the Members of New Saraswati house (India) Private Limited of even date)

To the best of our information and according to the explanations provided to us by the Company and
the books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, we state that:

I Inrespect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:
(a) (1) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

guantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(2) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a program of physical verification of Property, Plant and Equipment and
right-of-use assets so to cover all the assets once every three years which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant
to the program, certain Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during the
year and were physically verified by the Management during the year. According to the
information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

{c) According to the information and explanation given by the management, there are no
immovable properties, included in the property plant and equipment of the company and
accordingly the requirements under paragraph 3(i){c } of the order not applicable to the
company.

{d} The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right- of-
use assets} and intangible assets during the year.

{e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the Company as
at March 31, 2022 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transactions
{Prohibition} Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

ii. {a} The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our
opinion, the coverage and the procedures of verification are materially appropriate and all
material discrepancies of 10 % or more noticed on physical verification of inventaries have
been properly dealt within the books of accounts.

{b} The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of ¥ 5 crore, in’
aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or
statements filed to the HDFC Bank and RBL Bank by the Company are not in agreement with
the books of accounts of the company. The summary of differences is: -

A. Quarter ended 30" June 2021
(X in millions)

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank accounts
Inventory 274.70 275.28 -0.58
Trade receivables 456.38 501.76 -45,38
Trade payables 254,61 375.19 -120.58

A o R TGl e AN
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iii.

vi.

B. Quarter ended 30™ September 2021
(X in millions)

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank accounts
inventory 259.51 262.94 -3.43
Trade receivables 345.36 344.42 0.94
Trade payables 168.20 278.04 -109.84

C. Quarter ended 31% December 2021
(X in millions)

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank accounts
Inventory 307.75 308.90 -1.15
Trade receivables 277.85 272.89 4.96
Trade payables 199.37 314.19 -114.82

D. Quarter ended 31 March 2022
{ in millions)

iX_\'&'\th\\i‘i\i'i\ﬁ\imﬁﬁ‘.‘\‘i‘m\‘\%“mmﬁmﬁ\mmﬂ?ﬁ_{_ TR R T AT

Particulars As per statement As per books of Difference
filed with bank accounts
Inventory 269.22 269.22 -
Trade receivables 571.36 578.40 -7.04
Trade payables 232.15 343.05 -110.90

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not granted any
loan secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the companies Act, 2013,
Accordingly, the provision of clause iii (a) to {f) of the order are not applicable to the company
and hence not commented upon.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, there are no
loan, investment, guarantees and securities granted in respect of which provisions of section
185 and 186 of the companies Act 2013 are applicable and hence not commented upon.

The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of section 73 to 76 of the
Act and the companies {Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 {as amended). Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3{v) of the order are not applicable.

The maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the Central Government under
sub- section (1) of section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 for the business activities carried

out by the Company. Hence, reporting under clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.
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vii. In respect of statutory dues;

a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed
statutory dues including Provident fund, Employees State insurance, Income tax, Goods
and services tax, cess and Other statutory dues applicable to it. The provision relating to
excise duty are not applicable to the company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income tax, service tax,
goods & services tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable except the

following:
Name Nature of Amount | Period to Due Date of Remarks, if
of the Dues (Rs.) which the | dates | payment any
Statute amount
refates
Labour | Contribution 1,600 | FY 2019-20 31" | Not paid PTRC
Laws towards March {Employee
Professional 2020 Contribution)
Tax
(Maharashtra)
2,500 | FY 2019-20 | 30" Not paid PTEC
June {Employer
2020 contribution)

b} According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of income

tax, sales tax, service tax, custom duty, value added tax and cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute.

viti. According to information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of the
books of account, there were no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that

have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

iX. {a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given by the
management, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
financial institution or bank. The company does not have outstanding borrowings against
government or dues to debenture holders.

{b) The Company has not been declared willful defauiter by any bank or financial institution
or government or any government authority,

{c} Based on our Audit, The Company has applied the term loan for the purpose for which it is
obtained.

(d} On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised on

short- term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term purposes by
the Company.

A T B PR D D e R R R mm_o,i}_mm\?’m‘mws\x!\\mﬁ
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Xi.

Xii.

Xiif.

Xiv.

XV,

{e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has

not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its
subsidiaries,

{f) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, The Company has

not raised any loans during the year on pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, Joint
Ventures and Associates companies.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer

(including debt instruments) during the year and hence reporting under clause 3{x){a) of the
Order is not applicable.

{b) During the year, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and hence
reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

{a} To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanation given to

us, no fraud by the Company and no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the year.

(b} No report under sub-section {12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with
the Central Government, during the year and up to the date of this report.

{c} As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received

by the Company during the year. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xi)}{c) of the Order is not
applicable.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii} of the Order is
not applicable.

The provisions of section 177 are not applicable to the company and accordingly reporting
under clause xiii in so far as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
company and hence not commented upon.

According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with the section 188 of the companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system commensurate with
the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered, the internal audit reports for the year under audit, issued to the

Company during the year and till the date of audit report, in determining the nature, timing
and extent of our audit procedures.

In our opinion during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions
with its Directors or persons connected with its directors and hence provisions of section 192
of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the Company.
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xvi. {a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Hence, reporting under clause 3(xvi}{a}, {b) and (c) of the
Order is not applicable,

{b) In our opinion and as represented to us, there is no core investment company within the
Group (as defined in the Core Investment Companies {Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016) and
accordingly reporting under clause 3{xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable.

xvii. The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit,
there was a cash losses of Rs. 2.48 million in immediately preceding financial year.

xviik. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of the Company during the year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3(xvii) of the Order is not applicable.

Xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets
and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements
and our knowledge of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our
examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit
report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of
balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet
date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit
report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company
as and when they fall due.

XX. The provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act are not applicable to the company.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3{xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

XXi. This is report on standalone financial statement of the company. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

For J P Chawla & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
FRN. 001875N/N500025

O
per Richa Chawla \“\?,
Partner <

Membership No. 518499
Place: Noida
Date: 19" May 2022




New Saraswati Honse {India) Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110BL2013PTC262320

(X in millians)

Pavticulars Notes Asat As at
3t March 20122 3 March 2021
Assets
Non-corrent assets
Property, plant and equipnicnt 3 2931 33.10
Croodwill . 4A 56.73 5673
Other intangible assels 4A 77.25 102,15
Right to Use Assets 4B 80.28 T4.70
Imangible assets under development aC - 1.52
Firancial assels
- Loans 5B 6.30 384
« Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 5D 0.10 0.10
Deferred tax assets (net) 8 205.01 -
Other nen-current assets 7 .60 150
Total non-current assets 456,58 273.64
Current assets
Inventories & 26922 25726
Financial assets
- Trade reccivables 5A 578 40 600.61
- Loans 5B 8.71 1273
- Cash and cash equivalents 5C 405 94,16
Income tax assets (net) 7 .11 015
Other current asscts 7 633 4.28
Total current assets 866,82 $69.19
Total assets 1,323.40 1,242.83
Equity and Yiabilities
Equity
Share Capita) G 136 68 13668
Other equity
- Retained camings 10 (657.40) (897.98)
-~ General reserves 15 390.00 390,00
- Other reserves to G72 84 671 39
Total equidy 542,12 300.09
Non-current liabilities
Firancial liabilities
- Borrowings LA 22130 22736
- Lease lability 135 69.50 6927
Provisions 14 0.43 (.56
Total non eurrent Jiabilitics 291.23 272.0%
Current liabilities
Financial liabilitics
- Borrowings 118 7589 198 17
- Lease liability 13R 2374 1460
- Trade payables
"Trade payables of micro emerprises and smat] enterpriscs 12 3027 2823
‘Trade payables other than micro cnierprises and small enterprises 12 R bl | 38018
- Other financial habidities 13A 2398 2228
Other current fabihities 15 19.14 236
Prowisions 14 4.25 3.56
Total current liabilities 4905 &10.65
Total equity and liabilities 1,323.40 £,242.83
Summary of significant accounting policies Z1

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financral statements,
As per our report of even date
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for year ended 315t March 2022

CIN: U22110DL2083PTC262320

{T in millions)

For 12 Months Ended

Notes
Mar'22 Mar'21
I Revenue from contract with customers 5] 89358 78234
I Other mcome 17 13.88 1997
L Total Income (I+11) 907.46 802.31
IV Expenses
Cost of published poods/raw material consumed 18 287.81 250.90
(Increase)decrease in inventorics of finished goods and work in progress 19 25.59 7837
Employee benefit expenses 20 21873 185.06
Finance cost 21 48.92 63.43
Depreciation and amortisation expense 22 59.10 39.09
Publication expenses 23 5954 55.04
Other expenses 24 174.59 152,93
Total expenses 874.28 844.82
¥V Profit/Loss before tax and exceptional items (1H-I1V} 33,18 (42.51)
VI Exceptional ltems - -
VIl Profit/Loss before tax (V-VI) 33.1%8 (42.51)
VHE Tax cxpense:
Current tax B -
Income tax adjustment related to earlier year - -
Deferred tax charge/icredit) 27A {205.61) -
Total tax expenses {205.61) -
IX Profit/Loss for the year (VII-VII} 238.7% {42,513
X Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss 25
Re-nreasurement pains/(fosses) on defined benefit plans 239 4.73
Tax impact en re-measurement gain/{loss) on defined henefit plans (0.64) -
X1 ‘Fotal Comprehensive Profit/Loss for the year (IX+X) 240.58 (37.78)
Earnings per equity share; 26
(1) Basic 8,767 1,561)
(2) Diluted 17 (1693
Summary of significant accounting policies 21

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,

As per our report of even date

For JP Chawla & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 001873N/N500025
Chartered Accountants

per Richa Chawla
Partner
Membership No.: 518499
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Date: May 19, 2022
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Date: May 19, 2022
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Company Secretary
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Date: May 19, 2022
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Statement of Cash Fiow for period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

(X in millions)
For the period ended For the period ended

31st March 2022 31st March 2021
A. Cash flow from operating activities
Profit/Loss before tax 33.18 (42.51)
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows:
Depreciation and amortization 59.10 59.09
Employee stock option cxpense 1.45 -
Interest expense 48.75 61.98
Interest income (0.39) (1.10)
Interest income on security deposit (0.83) (1.16)
Loss on sale of property, plant and requipment 0.02 0.06
Loss on goods lost by fire - -
Unrealized foreign exchange pain - -
Miscellaneous amount written back (3.01) (5.45}
Adjustments for loss/gain in leases - (8.46)
Bad debts written off - 0.46
Provision for slow moving inventory - -
Provision for advances 0.71 -
Provision for bad & doubtful debts - 12.53
Operating profit before working capital changes 138.98 75.44
Adjustments for changes in working capital :
Decrease/{Increase) in trade receivables 22.21 4528
Decrease/(Increase) in other non-current assets and in other current assets (2.09) 0.09
Decrease/(Increase) in non current loans & advances and current loans & advances 1.68 8.19
Decreasc/(Increase) in inventories (11.97) i11.15
(Deerease)/Increase in non current trade payables and current trade payables (62.36} {83.68}
Increase/(Dectrease) in other financial liabilities 2.49 (0.00)
Increase/(Decrease) in other current liabilities (4.47) (7.38)
(Decrease)inerease in provisions 2.95 0.19
Cash (used in)/generated from operations 87.42 149.28
Direct tax (paidyrefund 0.04 20.97
Net cash (used in)/ generated frem operation (A) 8746 170.25
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assets, capital advances and CWIP (net of capital creditor} (2.79) (2.46)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets 0.04 0.00
Interest received 0.39 1.10
Net cash used in investing activities {B) (2.36) {1.36}

C. Cash flow from financing activities

Issue of fresh CCPS (conversion of long term unsecured borrowings}) - 136.40
Proceed/(Repayment) for long-term borrowings(net)

19.04 (67.14)
Repayment of tease liability including interest (32.70) (33.33)
Repayment of short term borrowings (net) (122.28) (51.0%)
Interest paid (39.25) {63.04}
Net cash vsed in financing activities (C) (175.21) (78.16)

(This space has been intentionally left blank)
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New Saraswati House (India)} Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flow for peried ended 315t March 2022
CIN: U221H0DLIOISPTCI62320

(T in mil

lions)

For the period ended For the period ended

31st March 2022

31st March 2021

Net increase/{(decrease) in cash & cash equivalents

{A+B+C} (90.113 90.73
Cash and cash cquivalents - at the beginning of the ycar 94.16 343
Cash and cash equivatents - at the end of the year 4.05 94.16
Comgponents of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand G.15 0.35
Balance with banks on current accounts 390 91.82
Bank Deposits (having maturity period less than 3 monhts from seporting date) - 1.99
Total Cash and cash equivalents (refer note 5C) 4.05 94.16
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities
. Long term Short term
Particulars . .
horrowings horrowings
As at 31 March 2025 202.26 198.17
Cash flows 19.04 (122.28)
Non cash changes - -
As a1 31 March 2022 221.30 75.89
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1

The accompanying notes are an intcgral part of the financial stalements.
As per our report of cven date

For JP Chawla & Co. LLP
ICAI Firm Registration No. 001875N/NS500025
Chartered Accountants

K

per Richa Chawla
Partner

Membership No.: 518499

Place : Noida
Date: May 19,2022

A

Shammi Manik

Chief Executive Officer
Place: New Delhi

Drate: May 19, 2022

Ankifa Gupta
Director
DIN:00054090
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

00054015
Place: New Delhi
Date: May 19, 2022

mr‘m Varsha Maheshwari

Chicf Financial Officer  Company Secretary
Place: New Dethi Place: New Dethi
Dhate: May 19, 2622 Date: May 19, 2022
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

New Saraswati House (India)} Private Limited (the Company) is 2 private company domiciled in India and incorporated
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956, These are standalone financial statements and, accordingly, these

Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS} financial statements incorporate amounts and disclosures related to the Company
only.

The Company is primarily engaged in printing and publication of educationa! books.
2.  Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, (as
amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013,
(Ind AS compliant Schedule IIT}, as applicable to the financiai statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on a histerical cost convention, except for certain following assets and
liabilities which have been measured at fair value (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments).

The financial statements are presented in “INR” “Indian Rupees” or “Z” and all values are rounded to the nearest Million
(INR 1,000,000), except when otherwise indicated.

2.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when:
« Mt is expected to be realised or intended to sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
* It is held primarily for the purpose of trading
+ ltis expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

» Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A Hability is classified as current when:

+ It is expected to be settled in normal cperating cycle

e ltis held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Jtis due to be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

* There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-cursent assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.3 Foreign currencies

Functional and presentational currency

The Company’s financial statements arc presented in INR, which is also the Company’s functional currency.
Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which an entity operates and is normally
the currency in which the entity primarily generates and expends cash.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabititics denominated in foreign currencies ar¢ translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date.

Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in Statement of profit or
loss.

Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial insiruments and cquity settled employee share based payment plan at fair
value at each reporting date.

Fair value is the price that would be reccived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

¢ in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
+ in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair valuc of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes inte account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by sclling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data arc
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observablc inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

» Level 2 — Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input fhat is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable

e Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets, unquoted financial assets, and significant liabilities,
such as valuation of unquoted investments and equity settled employee share based payment plan. Involvement of
external valuers is decided upon anmually by the Company’s management. Seclection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

At each reporting date, the Company’s management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities
which are required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
Company’s management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents,

The Company’s management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the
fair value of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.
i. Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions (Note 2.20)
ii. Quantitative disclosures of fair valuc measurement hierarchy (Note 41)
iii, Financial instruments (including those carricd at amortised cost) (Note 39)
iv. Equity Settled employee share based payment plan (Note 43)

2.5  Revenue from contract with customers

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services arc transferred to the
customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for

those goods or services. The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is
recognised.

Goods and services Tax (GST) is not received by the Company on its own account. Rather, it is tax collected on value
added to the commodity by the seller on behalf of the government. Accordingly, it is excluded from revenue.

The disclosures of significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions relating to revenue from contracts
with customers are provided in Note 2.20.

The specific recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognised.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, i.e. at the time of handing over goods to the carrier for transportation.

The company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separatc performance obligations to
which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated. In determining the transaction price for the sale of books,
the company considers the effects of variabie consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-

cash considerations and consideration payable to the customer (if any). gia) Pyt L
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The provision for anticipated returns is made primarily on the basis of historical return rates, The provision for turnover
discount and ¢ash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.

Variable consideration

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the Company estimates the amount of consideration to
which it will be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved. Some of the contracts with customer provide a right to customer of cash
rebate/discount if payment is cleared within specified due dates.

» Rights of return

Certain contracts provide a customer with a right to return the goods within a specified period. The provision for
anticipated returns is made primarity on the basis of historical return rates as this method best predicts the amount
of variable consideration to which the Company witl be entitled. The requirements in Ind AS 115 on constraining

estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable consideration
that can be included in the transaction price.

e Volume rebates

The Company provides volume rebates to certain customers once the value of products purchased during the
period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the expected future rebates, the Company applies the most likely
amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value method for contracts with
more than one volume threshold. The selected method that best predicts the amount of variable consideration is
primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The Company then applies the

requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises a refund liability for the expected
future rebates.

+ Cash rebates

The Company provides cash rebates to certain customers if customers make the payment within the stipulated
time given in the contract. The provision for cash discount is made on estimated basis based on historical trends.
The Company then applies the requirements on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognises
a refund hability for the expected future rebates.

Contract balances

Contract assets

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. If the
Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before
payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the carned consideration that is conditional,

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.c., only the passage
of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the
Company transfers goods or services to the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilitics arc recognised as revenue when the Company performs

under the contract. For New Saras ati House tindia} PTJL Lid.
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the vear ended 31 March 2022
{Amounts in Indian Rupecs, unless otherwise stated)

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable for all financial instruments measured at amortised cost and other interest-bearing financial assets, interest
income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment,

extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in
other income in the statement of profit or loss.

2.6 Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measurcd at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Indian Income Tax Act, 196]. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the

amount are those that are cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date in the countries where the Company
operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity), Current tax jtems are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in QCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect

to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where
appropriate,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

s When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction

that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss

s Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint arrangements, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foresceable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probabie that taxable profit will

be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or Hability in & fransaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

» Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investrments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred
tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised. Lid
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at cach reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ail or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that arc expected to apply in the year when the asset is

realised or the liability is settted, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively cnacted at
the reporting date.

Deterred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items
are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabitities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax labilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the samc taxation authority.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

Capital work in progress, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of replacing parts of the property, plant and equipment and
borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when
a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recegnised in the profit
or loss as incurred.

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recogniscd as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when

future economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derccognised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future econoemic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the differcnce between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equiptnent, other than leaschold improvements, have been provided on pro-rata
basis, on the straight line method, using rates determined based on management’s technical assessment of useful D
economic lives of the asset, Hadia] pui.
ofyeti OUSE :
cot Hew Sal

L~ putor

s6d gignatety

f= =5

AT :




New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.8

Followings are the estimated useful lives of various category of assets used.

Category of assets Useful life as adopted by Useful life as per Schedule 1T
management
Office Equipment 5 years 5 years
Furniture & fixture 10 years 10 years
Vehicle 10 years 8 years
Computer 6/3 years 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortised over economic useful life or unexpired peried of lease whichever is less.
Assets costing T 5,000 or less are depreciated entirely in the year of purchase.

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and maragement estimate, depreciates certain
items of plant and machinery, vehicles, computers and building over estimated useful lives which are different from
useful life prescribed in Schedule H to the Companies Act, 2013, The management believes that these estimated uscful
lives are realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the assct (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is
included in the statement of profit or loss when the asset 1s derecognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, piant and equipment are reviewed at each
financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets

Recognition and measurement

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss when it is incurred.

Amortisation and useful lives
The uscful lives of intangible assets arc assessed as either finite or indefinite.

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economie lives and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method
for an intangible assct with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the cnd of each reporting period. Changes in the
expected useful lifc or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset arc
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation cxpense on intangible asscis with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually tcﬁc\:ltq‘r@jne
whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life f ifqdaﬁmft\@%%nitc is made
on a prospective basis. For New Sera .
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Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
assct is derecognised.

A summary of the policies applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as follows:

Intangible assets Useful lives Amortization method used Internally
generated or
acquired
Computer software Finite {5-10 years) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of useful lives
Goodwill on business | In-definite No amortization Acquired
combination
Copyrights Finite (10 vears) Amortized on straight line basis | Acquired
over the period of copyright
Content development (including | Finite (10 scasons) Amortized on straight line basis | Internally generated
In-house contents)* over the period of content

*QR codes are amortized over 6 years as per terms of license.

Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as
an intangible assct when the company can demonstrate all the following:

¢  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale. Its intention
to complete the asset.

o Its ability to use or sell the asset.
¢ How the asset will generate future economic benefits.
¢ The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset,

s The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the
asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the
asset begins when development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortised over the period of expected
future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually.

2.9  Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying asset are capitalised
as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Capitalisation of borrowing costs is suspended and charged to the Statement of profit and loss during extended period
when active development activity of the qualifying assets is interrupted.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds, It
also includes exchanges differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

i npdia) Pyt kid.
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2.10 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a Lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

1. Right to use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.c., the date the underlying asset
is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumuiated depreciation and impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the
lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

Leaseheld premises 3 to 9 years

2. Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measurcd at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance

fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments and amounts cxpected to be paid under
residual value guarantees,

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incrementa borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the leasc is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if therc is a modification, a

change in the leasc term, a change in the lease payments {c.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used to determine such lease payments).

3. Short term leases and leases of low value assets

The Company applics the short-term tcase recognition exemption to its short-term leases of office premises (i.e., those
Jeases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to

be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as ¢cxpense on a
straight-line basis over the lease ferm.

Ind AS 116 adoption

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adepted Ind AS 116 “Leases” and applied the standard to ali lease contracts
existing on April 1, 2019 using the modified retrospective method {alternative I1). Consequently, the Company
recorded the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments discounted at the incremental borrowing rate
with equal amount of right to use assct at the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 have not been retrospectively adjusted.
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2.11

2.12

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition is accounted for as follows:

« Raw materials: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition, Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

« Finished goods and work in progress: cost includes cost of direct materials and labour and a proportion of
manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but cxcluding borrowing costs. Cost is
determined on first in, first out basis.

« Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Impairment of non—financial assets

The Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount ts determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. When
the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In
determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken inte account. If no such transactions
can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. Thesc calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples,
quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are aliocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by
the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or
declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of contiruing operations, including impairment on inventorics, are recognised in the statement of
profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication
that previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company
estimates the assct’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised impairment toss is reversed only if there
has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss

was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recov unt
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2.13

nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or loss unless the assct is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each CGU (or group of CGUs) to
which the goodwill relates. Wher the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, an impairment
loss is recognised. Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be reversed in future periods.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial assct of one entity and a financial liahility or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI}, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs, Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under Ind
AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to give
rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest {(SPP1)’ on the principal amount outstanding. This
assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument leve!. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPP are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Company’s business mode! for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual cash
flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held within
a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contraciual cash flows while financial
assets classified and measured at fair value through OCT are held within a busincss model with the objective of both
holding to collect contractual cash flows and sclling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or

convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
» Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
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* Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with recycling of cumulative gains
and losses (debt instruments)

» Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) with no recycling of cumulative
gains and losscs upon derecognition (equity instruments)

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

A ‘Financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for coltecting contractual cash flows,
and

» Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets arc subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (EIR} method. Amortised cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit
or less. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCTI) (debt instruments)
A “financial asset” is classified as at the FVTOCT if both of the foliowing criteria are met:

» The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial
assets, and

¢ The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments inctuded within the FVTOC! category are measured initiaily as well as at each reporting date at fair
value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company
recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or {oss in the P&L. On de-
recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to P&L.
Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments)

Alt equity instruments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Eguity instruments which are held for trading
and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind AS 103 applics are
classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the group may make an irrevocable election to present
subsequent changes in the fair value in other comprehensive income. The group makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument,
excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale
of investment. However, the company may transfer the cumutative gain or loss within equity,

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the
statement of profit and loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit and loss.
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This category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably
elected to classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss when the right of payment has been established.

De-recognition

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s standalone balance sheet) when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full withowt material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ arrangement; and
cither (a) the Company has transferred substantiatly all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has

neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to reccive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the

original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required
to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

* Financial assets that are measured at amortised cost e, g., loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables and bank
balance

» Financial assets that are measured as at FVTOC]

* Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116,

» Contract assets and trade receivables under Ind-AS 115,

* Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL.

» Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on:
. Trade receivables, and

. All lease receivables resulting from transactions within the scope of Ind AS 116.

The application of simplified approach dees not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at cach reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether
there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-menth ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly,
lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improyes such %%@éeﬂﬁﬂgﬂwpt\d,
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a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss
allowance based on §2-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that arc due to the Company in accordance with the contract

and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.c., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When
estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment extension, call and similar options) over
the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial

instrument cannot be estimated retiably, ther the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the
financial instrument,

» Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historicaily observed default rates over the expected life
of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed
defauit rates arc updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analyscd. On that basis, the Company has
estimated provision of 6.14% is required to be made on outstanding receivables at the reporting date:

Age bracket Not due 0—2i5days | 215 - 365|365 ~ 730 | Morc than 730 days
days days
Credit Loss Rate 0.17% 2.93% 15.68% 60.95% 100%

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/cxpense in the
statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L., The balance
sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:

The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is described below:-

a)  For financial assets measured as at amortised cost and lcase receivables: ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e.
as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying
amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the
£ross carrying amount,

b)  Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: FCL is presented as a provision in the balance sheet, ie.
as a liability,

¢)  Debt instruments measured at FVTOCE: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair value, impairment

allowance is not further reduced from its vatuc. Rather, ECL amount is presented as ‘accumulated impairment
amount’ in the OCI.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financia! instruments on the basis
of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant
increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

The Company does not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, i.c., financial assets
which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination. Pyi. Lid.
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Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables and loans and borrowings including bank
overdrafts.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified

as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. Gains or fosses on liabilities
held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in QCI. These gains/loss are not
subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All
other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when
the liabilities are derecognised as welk as through the EIR amortisation process. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR

amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings,

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantec contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortisation.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability arc substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of

the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective canmying amounts is
recognised in the statement of profit or loss
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Re-classification of Financial Assets

The Company determincs classification of financial assets and Yabilitics on initial recognition. After initial
recognition, no reclassification is made for financial assets which are ¢quity instruments and financial liabilities. For
financial assets which are debt instruments, & reclassification is made only if there is a change in the business model
for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines change in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are significant
to the Company’s operations. Such changes are evident to external parties. A change in the business model oceurs
when the Company either begins or ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the Company
reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reclassification date which is the first
day of the immediately next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does not restate
any previously recognised gains, losses (inciuding impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities arc offset and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated balance sheet

if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.

Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation,
other than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the
provident fund scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the
scheme for service received before the balance shect date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to
the scheme is recognized as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset
to the extent that the pre-payment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

The Company operates a defined benefit gratuity plan in India, which requires contributions to be made to a scparately
administered fund.

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceitfing, excluding amounts included
in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on pian assets (excluding amounts included in net
intercst on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding
debit or credit to retained camings through OCI in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the eatlier of:
s The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
* The date that the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the unconsolidated statement
of profit and loss:

l-dl

» Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on cur&aﬂrgggyég%hbﬁ%&ﬁne
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s Net interest expense or income,
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Compensated absences

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as
a result of the unused entitiement that has accumulated at the reporting date.

2.15 Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that an cutflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and
a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provisien
to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually
certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,

when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an

original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash at bank and in hand and short term
investments with an original maturity of three months or less.

2.17 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss for the peried atiributable to equity shareholders of
the company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the company
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of
equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

2.18 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash distributions to equity holders of the Compary when
the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate

laws in India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is
recognised directly in equity.

2.19  All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have been rounded off to the nearest millions as per the
requirement of Schedule I, unless otherwise stated,

2.20  Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial staternents in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, €Xpenses,
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures (including contingent tiabilities). The management believes
that the estimates used in preparation of the financial statements are prudent and reasonable. Uncertainty about these

assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets
or liabilities affected in future periods.

A. Judgement

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting poticies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods cavered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

For the lease contracts that include extension and termination options, the Company applies judgement in evaluating
whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is, it
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination.
After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in
circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to
terminate {e.g., construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customisation to the leased asset).

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company applied the foliowing judgements that significantly affect the determination of the amount and timing
of revenue from contracts with customers:

Determining method to estimate variable consideration and assessing the constraint

Certain contracts for the sale of books include cash rebates and volume rebates and a right to retum the goods that
give rise to variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use cither the
expected value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the transaction price, the Company considers whether the
amount of variable consideration is constrained. The Company determined that the estimates of variable consideration
are not constrained based on its historical experience, business forecast and the ¢urrent economic conditions. In
addition, the uncertainty on the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time frame.

B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that
have a significant risk of causing a materia} adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and cstimates on parameters available when
the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent it is probable that taxable profits will be avaitable against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assels

that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality
rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its Jong-term nature, a defined benefit obiigation is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions, All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the

management considers the interest rates of government bonds with term that correspond with the expected term of the
defined benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval

in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future
inflation tates for the respective countries.

Further details about gratiity obligations are given in Notc 28.

Provision for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets

The Company uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables and contract assets, The provision rates
are based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by

geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit
insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Company’s historical observed default rates. The Company will calibrate
the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if forecast
economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an
increased number of defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes i the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation between historical observed default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs
is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit toss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be

representative of customer’s actual default in the future. For details of allowance for doubtful debts please refer Note
5A.

*

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are reviewed at the end

of each reporting period to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists,
then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit (‘\CGU’) is the greater of its value in use and its fair value
less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset or CGU. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together
into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that arc largely independent of the
cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (*CGU”").

Market related information and estimates are vsed to determine the recoverable amount. Key assumptions on which
management has based its determination of recoverable amount include estimated fong term growth rates, weighted
average cost of capital and estimated operating margins. Cash flow projections take into account past experience and
represent management’s best estimate about future developments.

Estimating variable consideration for right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates

Certain contracts for the sale of books include a right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates that give rise to
variable consideration. In estimating the variable consideration, the Company is required to use either the expected
value method or the most likely amount method based on which method better predicts the amount &facitplgl;db.tﬁtion
to which it will be entitled. : wali House (o :
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
{(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

2.21

The Company estimates variable considerations to be included in the transaction price for the sale of goods with a
right of return, volume rebates and cash rebates.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilitics. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay
to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to
the right-of-use asset in a similar cconomic cnvironment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have
to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be adjusted to reflect

the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company cstimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest
rates) when available.

Exceptional item

Exceptional items refer to items of income or expense within the income statement that are of such size, nature or
incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the performance for the period. Materiality
threshold can be used to select items to be disclosed as exceptional on case to case basis. This threshold would be
applied separately for standalone as well as consolidated financial statements. However, in case an item qualifies for
disclosure in standalone financial statements but not in consolidated financial statements or vice versa, this would

need to be evaluated on case to case basis the above analysis, mainly following items would be evaluated for disclosure
as exceptional items:

a) Reassessment/ Change in life of asset (in case of re-cvaluation of business/product, impact of all assets specific
to that business/product to be considered for applying the threshold).
b} Provision for other than temporary diminution in the valuc of non-current investment,

¢) Write-downs of inventories to net realisable value or of property, plant and equipment to recoverable amount, as
well as reversals of such write downs,

d) In case of other significant item of income or expense, not covered above, the same would be evaluated on a casc
to case basis for disclosure under exceptional items

New and amended standards

Recent pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the
Companies (Indian Accounting $tandards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as below:

Ind AS 103 — Reference to Conceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method, the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of
Ind AS 103, The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 16 - Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment amounts
received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity
will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to
have any impact in its recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022
(Amounts in Indian Rupees, unless otherwise stated)

Ind AS 37 — Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fuifilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (exampies
would be direct labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The

amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements,

Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applics the *10 percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing

whether to derecognise a financial liability. The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significans
impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 106 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)
The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lcase

mcentives were described in that illustration. The Company docs not expect the amendment to have any significant
impact in its financial statements.

Standards notified but not yet effective

There was no standard notified but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Company's finangial statements.
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New Saraswati House {India} Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

4B. Right to use asset (refer note 29)

(T in millions})

Particulars Right o use Total

asset
Cost
As at Ist April 2020 149.92 149.92
Purchases 30.05 3005 =
Disposals (50.15) (50.15)
Adjustment on account of remeasurment of lease liability (8.06) (8.06)
As at 31 March 2021 121.76 121.76
Purchases 34.42 34,12
Disposals - -
Adjustment on account of remeasurment of lease liability (0.85) (0.85)
As at 31 March 2022 155.03 155.03
Accumulated depreciation
As at Ist April 2020 30.70 30.70
Amortization for the year 26.80 26.80
Disposals (10.44) (10.44)
As at 31 March 2021 47.06 47.06
Amortization for the year 27.69 27.69
Disposals - -
As at 31 March 2022 74.75 74.75
Net block
As at 31 March 2022 80.28 80.28
As at 31 March 2021 74.70 74.70

4C. Intangible asset under development as at March 31, 2022 is NIL (March 31, 2021: % 1.52 million). During the year company has impaired-the intangibte asset
under development related to previous year.

Ageing for intangible assets under development as at March 31, 2021 is as follows:
Amount as on 315t Mar'2]

Intangible assets under development Less than 12 Year 2.3 Year More than Total
I Year 3 year

Project in Progress

Diamond English Language & Literature (Course B) - 0.29 - - 0.29
Diamendlanguage & Literaure Class IX - 0.37 - - 0.37
Sarthak Hindi Vyakean TB/TM/Digital 0.32 - - - 0.32
Sarthak Hindi Vyakran TB/TM/Digital 0.54 - - - 0.54 -
Total Intangible Assets under Development 1.52

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Nates te financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2ZMIPT(262320

5. Finanecial assets

SA. Trade receivables

(¥ in millions)

Particulars As at
: 31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Tatal Trade receivables
Trade receivables
Considered pood- Secured
Considered good~ Unsecured

53718.40 600.61
Receivables which Lave significant increase in credit risk 66.65 8287
Receivables- credil impaired - -
645.05 683.48
Less : Allewances for expected credit foss
Considercd good- Secured - -
Considered good- Unsecured - .
Receivables which have significani increase in credit risk (66.65} (82.87)
Receivables- credit impaired - -
(66,65} (82.87)
Net trade receivables
Considered good- Sccured - -
Considered good- Unsecured 578.40 60061
Receivables which have significant increase in eredit risk - -
Receivables- credit impaired - -
Total trade receivabies 578,40 600.61
Trade receivables from related parties (refer note 30B) 6.05 346
Current 578.40 600,61
Non-Current - -
The movement in impairment of trade receivables is as follow: (X in mitlions)
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 3t March 2021
Opening balance 8287 70.34
Addittons/{Reversal) (7.06) 12.53
Write off (net of recovery) (%.16) -
Closing bakance 66.65 §2.87
No trade receivable are due from dircctor or ather officer of the Company either severally or Jointly with any other person,
Ageing for trade teceivables - current cutstanding as at March 31, 2022 is as follows:
. ‘ Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment { in millions)
Particulars Not due Less than & months - . T More than Total
& months 1 year t-2 yeurs 2 -3 yeurs 3 years
Trade receivables - Bitled
Undisputed trade receivables — considered good 525.54 1554 2933 H.94 0.66 - 583.01
Und.lsl:.mll?,d trade receivables — which have significant increase 012 6.0 403 13.01 561 2 90 25.68
credit risk
Undisputed trade receivables — credit impaired - 062 - 0.36 - 1.25 .63
Mhsputed trade receivables — considered good 0.03 - 0.10 - 149 3,99 7.61
Dlspulf:d trade receivables — which have significant increase in R 043 R 0.43 184 2107 2597
credit nisk
Disputed trade receivables - credit impaired - - - - 0.32 0.53 1.35
52869 16.00 33.46 15.74 12.42 31.74 645,05
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade reccivables - Billed ) (66.65)
578.40
Ageing for trade receivables - current outstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as fellows:
) Outstanding for fotlowing periods from due date of payment @ in millions)
Particulars Not due Less than 6 months - _ _ More than Total
6 months 1 year 1-2years 3 -3 years 3 years
Trade receivables - Billed
Undisputed trade receivabies ~ considered good 478,68 5493 66.30 5.03 0.79 - 605.74
:::dt'::s::;cd trade receivabies — which have significant increase n R 0od 844 1300 1713 |32 39.93
Undisputed trade receivabies - credit impaired 0.04 00k .04 0.43 1.54 291 4.97
Disputed trade receivables — considesed good 0.22 - 0.42 023 235 0.56 3.78
c?el;;l)[u:lescli( trade receivables — which have significant increase in ) o1 0.00 368 12.01 10,14 26.03
Disputed trade receivables — credit impaired . - - - - 303 3.03
478.95 55.00 75.29 1237 . CoA3zd, 17.96 683.48
Less: Allowance for doubtful trade receivables - Bitled Lo swail HOUSa [T X (82.87)
For New Hard 600,61
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 315t March 2022
CIN: U221H0DL2013PTC262320

SB. Loans

(% in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 Maveh 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Security deposits - Non Current

Security deposits - Current

Advances recoverable in cash or kind (refer note (a) below)
Tutal Loans and advances

Current
Non-Current

Note (a)

Advances recoverable in cash or kind

Considered good, unsecured

Considered good, secured

Recoverable which have significant increase in credit risk
Recoverable - credit impaired

Less: Allowance for expecied credit loss
Advances recoverabic from related parties

Unsecured, considered good (refer note 30B)
Unsecured, considered doubtful

S5C. Cash and cash equivalents

6,30 384
3.0 6.02
5.70 6.71
15.01 16.57
871 12.73
6.30 3.84
5.63 6.00
222 3.08
7.85 0.08
{2.22) (3.08)
563 6.00
0.07 0.71
0.07 0.71
570 674

(T in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Balances with banks
- oI cuttent accounts
Cash on hand
Other Bank Balances
- Bank Deposits (having maturity period less than 3 menhts from reporting date)
Total Cash and cash equivalents

Current
Non-Current

5D Bank balances other than cash and cash cquivalents

3.90 91.82
013 4.35

- .99
4,05 94.16
4.05 94.16

@ in millipns)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Margin money deposit {refer note below)
Total other financial Assets

Current
Non-Current

Note : «

Margin money deposits are under liea with banks towards bank puarantees issued by banks Lo the safes tax authorities

6. Inventories

010 0.10
0.10 0.1%
010 0.10

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Raw materials (at cost)

Finished goeds (at lower of cost and nct realisable value)

Finished goods-traded goods {at lower of cost and nel realisabie value)
Total Inventories

- ! i
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New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited

Notes to financiat statetnents for the period ended 31st March 2022

CIN: U22110D1L2013PTC262320

7. Other asscts
JA.  Prepaid expenses
(¥ in millions)
Particulars As at As at
3t March 2022 31 March 2021
Prepaid expenses (Nen current) 1.54 1.43
Prepaid expenses (Cutrent) 493 429
Total Prepaid expenses 6.47 572
7B.  Other assets
(T in millions)
. As at As at
P 14
Articulars 31 March 2022 31 Mareh 2021
Income tax recoverable 0.11 0.15
Gratuity Fund (surplus fund valuation) 1.40 -
Accrued income on depasits 0.06 0.07
Total Other assets 1.57 6.22
Current 6.44 4.44
Non-Current 1.60 1.50
8. Deferred taxes
(¥ in millions)
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2022

3t March 2021

Ttems leading to creation of deferred tax asscts

Tmpact of expenditure charged ta the statement of profit and loss accoun

14X purposes on payment basis in subsequent year

tin the current year but allowed for

173 -
Provision for doubtful debt & advances 16.97 -
Lease liability 23.47 -
Tmpact of business loss carry forwarded in next years 198.62 -
Total deferred tax assets 240.59 -
Etems leading to creation of deferred tax liabilitics (35.58)
Totat deferred tax labilitics (35.58) -
Net deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 205.0% -

{This space has been intentionally left blank]
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U221 10DL2613PTC262320

9. Share Capital

{¥ in rnillions)
As at
31 March 2621

As at
31 March 2022

Particulars

Authorised

100,000 (31 March 2021: 00,000} Equity shares of Rs 10~ each 1.00 100

2,60,00,000 (31 March 2021: 2,00,00,000) Preference Shares of Rs. L0/- each” 200.06 20680
201,00 201.00

Issued, snbseribed and fully paid up

27,236 (31 March 2021: 27,236) equity shares of Rs. 10/- cach 0.28 0.28

1,56,39,989 (31 March 2021: 1,36,39,989) CCPS* of Rs. 10/ each 136.40 136.40
136.68 136.68

"~ The Authorized share capital increased from Rs. 10,00,000/- to Rs. 20,30,60,000/ vide passing sharcholders ordinary resofution at the Exira Ordinary General Meeting held on

March 6, 2021

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares No. of shares

Tssued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2020 27.236

Increase{ Decrease) duning the year -

As at 31 March 2021 27,236

Increase/{Decrease) during the year -

As at 31 March 2022 171,236

b. Terms/ rights attached tv equity shares

The Company has onty ane class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each halder of equity shares is entitled 10 one votc per share. No dividend has been proposed
by the board of director during the year ended 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: Nil}. In the event of fiquidation of the company, the holder of cquity shares will be cnlilied 1o Teceive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of al} preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propertion to the namber of equity shares held by the shareholder.

e, 0.01% Compulsery Convertible Preference Shares
Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

As at 31 March 2020

Increase/{Decrease) during the year

No. of shares

1,36,39,989
As at 31 March 2021 1,36,39,989
Increase/{ Decrease) during the year -
As 2t 31 March 2022 1,36,39,989

d. Terms/ rights attached to Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

The company has issued 1,36,39,985 0.01% Non-Cumulalive, Non-Parlicipating, Compuisory Convertible Prefrence Shares (CCPS) of Rs. 10 cach issued at par, vide Board
Resolution Dated 261h March, 2621,

These CCPS having a preferential right vis-a-vis equity sharcs of the Company with respect 1o payment of dividend and repaymicnt in case of winding up or repayment of
capital. CCPS shall be compulserily converted afler expiry of the peried of 5 years from the date of allotment into such number of cquity shares of face value or Rs. 10/- gach at

the Fait Market Value to be determined at the time of conversion, and CCPS shall have voting rights only ir respect of certain matters as per the provisions of Section 47(2)
of the Act.

€. Shures held by holding company and their subsidiaries
Equity Shares

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

31 March 2022 31 March 2021

S Chand And Company Limited.
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company

Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares

22336
4,900

22,336
4,500

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

5 Chand And Company Limited.
Chhaya Prakashni Limited, Subsidiary of the holding company

£ Details of shareholder holting more than 5% equity shares in the Cumpany:

55,70,007
80,69,982

55,70,007
80,69,982

§ Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company.

No, of shares

% of shares

As at 31 March 2021
As at 31 March 2022

Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of fhe holding company X L

22,336
22,336

No. of shares

82.0t%
82.0!1%

% of shares

As at 31 March 2021

quse Undia) P
As at 31 March 2022 F ) | l
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31si March 2022
CIN: UR2110DL2013PTC262320

£ Details of equity shares held by promoters in the Company:

§ Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company.

No. of shares % of shares
As at 31 March 2021 22,336 82.01%
As at 31 March 2022 22336 | 82.01%
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited, subsidiary of the holding company No. of shares % of shares
As at 3t March 2021 4,900 17.99%
As at 31 March 2022 4,900 17.99%
h. Details of shareholder holding more than 5% C, puksory Convertible Preference Shares in the Company:
8§ Chand And Company Limited, the Holding Company. No. of shares % of shares
Asat 31 March 2021 55,70,007 40.84%
As at 31 March 2022 55,70,007 40.84%
Chhaya Prakashani Limited, subsidi y of the holding company No. of shares % of shares
As al 31 March 2021 80.65,982 59.16%
As at 31 March 2022 §0,69,982 59.16%

As per records of the Company, meluding its regssier of sharchalder/ member and other declarations received

from shareholder regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares.

1. Other Equity (¥ in millions)

Particulars As at As at
) 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Retained earning
Balance as the beginning of year (857.98) (B60.20)
Add/Less: Profit/(Loss) for the year 238,79 (42.51)

Add/Less: Otler comprehensive income/ (toss) for the year

1.79 4.73
Balance as the end of year (657.40) (897.98)
General reserve
Balance as the beginning of year 39080 350.00
Increase/(Decreasc) dusing the year - B
Balance as the end of year 390.00 390.00
Securities premium
Balance as the beginning of year 66983 669 83
IncreaseX Decrease) during the year - -
Balance as the cnd of year 669.83 669,83
Other equity
Balance as the beginning of year 1.56 1.56
Increase/(Decrease) during the year 145 -
Balance as the end of year 3.01 1.56

Nature and parpose of reserves

Security premium

Securities premium is used to record the premium an issue of shares. The

premium can be utilised only for limited purposes in accardance with the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013.

General reserve

General reserve was created upon 13.25% optionall

y convertible redeemable debentures were converted into cquity shares, the debenturs redemption teserve was transferred to
General Reserve.

Other equity

Deemed capital contribution represents Employce stock option (ESOP) cost allocated by the parent Company for stock opiions issued to employees of the Company.

Far Wev Saraswal, House lindia) Pyt. fid,
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2053PT( 262320

Borrowings

11A. Noa-current borrowings

(T in mitlions)

Particul As at As at
artlewlars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Term loans

WCTL under ECLGS form Kotak Bank (secured) {refer 1 below) 10,54 16.50

WCTL under ECLGS form RBL Bank (secured) {refer 2 below) 2933 46,93

Vehicle loans

Indian rupee loan from banks (secured) (Refer note 3 & 4 below) 273 343

Loan from Group Company

Indian rupee loan from holding co.(refer note 6 below) 125.00 125.00

Indian rupee loan from enterprise under same control {refer note 7 & 8 below) 33.70 10,00

Total Non-current borrowings 221.30 202,26

Secured 42,60 6726

Unsecured 178.70 135.00

Notes:

Company has taken WCTL. of ¥ 19.90 million under ECI.GS form Kotak Bank in financial year 2020-23 which carries fixed RO? as on date of offer is 8% p.a. (derived from
K_EBLR + 1%} repayable in 36 monthly instalments starting from Oct-2021. Moratorium of 12 menths cxcercised from date of first disbursement. The loan is secured by
way of (i} First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on all existing and fialure current assets of the Borrower {ii} First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on current assels shared
with HDFC Bank and RBL Bank {iii) First Pari-passu hypothecation charge on all existing and futurc moveable fixed assets of the Borrower, and (iv) First Pani-passu
hypothecation charge on moveablefixed assets shared with HDFC Bank and RBL Bank.

Company has taken WCTL of ¥ 52.80 million under ECLGS form RBL Bank in financial year 2020-21 which camies floating ROT (ie. RRLR {i.e. 5.10% p.a. + 0.15%
spread) at the time of disburshment laterest rate was 9.25% p.a. Repayable in 36 monthly instalments stacting from  Dec-2021 {Maratorium of 12 manths excercised from date
of first disbursement),

The loan is secured by way of (i} 100% Guarantced by National Credit Guaraniee Trustee Company Ltd {NCGTC) (i) Second Charge by way of hypothecation on entire

curtent asstes inclusive of stock and book debts, both present and future, and (iii) Second Charpe by way of hypothecation on entire movable fixed asstes both presens and
future {cxcept those charged excl. to other banks/tinancial instutions.)

Vehicle loan from HDFC bank has been taken in the year 2016-17, secured by way of hypothecation of sespective vehicle in favour of the bank. It carries interest rate of 9.36%
p.a. The loan is repayable in 60 equal monthly instalments beginning from May 2016 and have been fully repaid in Apr21.

Vehiele loan from M/s. Daimler Financial $ervices has been taken in the year 2519-20, secured by way of hypothecation of respective vehicle in favour of the Lendor. It carries

interest rate of 10.75% p.a. The loan is repayable in 48 equal monthly insialments beginning from Oct2619 and at the time of payment of 48th EMI entire remaining balance
of Rs. 2.44 million will be paid 1o the lendor.,

The Charges related 1o the above leans have been registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC). The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be
registered with the ROC beyond the statutory period.

The Company had taken a loan of ¥ 30 million from the Holding Cempany during the year ended 31 March 2018, This loan was convertible at the option of the holding
company after | year and if not converted on or after 3 years, the sane was repayable by the company on completion of 3 years and ¥ 5 millions was repaid in same year. The
company has additionaliy taken loan of 2 125 million during year ended 31 March 2020. In year 2020-21 company has further availed loan of % 25 million and has converted
toan of 2 50 million (including accrued interest thercon) into 55,780,007 0.01% non curamulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (refer note 9) resulling into
outstanding balance of ¥ 125 million as on 31 March 2021. During the year ended 31 March 2620, the holding company has changed interest rate equal 1o State Bank of

India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. During the year ended 31 March 2022 neither the company has accepted nor repaid any principal aut of this borrowing (effective rate
of interest $.70% p.a. during year 2021-22}

The Company has taken a loan of 7 77.50 miltions from Chhaya Prakashani Limited, fellow subsidiary, during the year ended 31 March 2020 and carries interest rate equal to
State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p a- The facility wil! be convertibie at the option of the company afler 1 year and if not converted on or after 3 years, the toan
shall be repaid by the company on completion of 3 yeats. During vear ending 31 March 2021, the company has repaid loan of 2 5 million, batance 2 72.50 miltions (including
acerued interest thereon) converted into 80,69,982 0.01% non cummulative compulsorily convertible preference shares (refer note 9). Further, additional loan of 2 10 million
has been taken during the year which carries interest rate equat to State Bank of india’s 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. During the year ended 31 March 2022 neither the
company has accepted nor repaid any principal out of this borrowing. {cffective rate of interest 9.70% p.a. during year 2021-22)

The Company has taken a foan of ¥ 35 million from Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited, fellow subsidiary, dusing the year ended 31 March 2019, The facitity will be
convertible at the optien of the company after | year and if' not converted on or after 3 years, the loan shall be repaid by the company on com pletion of 3 years. The company
has additionally taken loan of 2 § millicn during year ended 31 March 2020, Balance outstanding as on 31 March 2020 was T 40 million. During year ended 33 March 2021,
the company has repaid Loan of 15 million and availed additionat loan of ¥ 18.70 million resuiting into outstanding balance of Z 43.70 millions as on 31 March 2021, During
the year ended 31 March 2020, the tender company has changed interest rate equal (o State Bank of India's 2 Year MCLR plus 250 Bps p.a. On 10tk Feb'22, the company had
requested the fenders o extend the tenure of original agreement expiring on 11th Feb'22 for a further period of 3 years cffetive form 12th Feb22. All conditions to this loan
shall remian unchanged except that " the loan will be convertible at the option of the borrower afier | year and if not converted on or before 3 years, the loan shall be repaid by
the borrower on completion of 3 years™. {effective rale of interest 9.70% p.a. during year 2021-22)
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

11B. Current borrowings

(¥ in mitlions)

Particulars As at As at
" 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

a  Cash Credit
Indian rupee loan from bank (sccured) {refer note 3A & 3B below) 51.23 128.26

b Vehicle Loan
Indian rupee loan from bank (secured) (refer sub note 3 & 4 of note 11A) 0.70 0.67

¢ Current maturity of long term borrowings
Term Loans

Indian rupee loan from bank (RBL Bank) (secured) {refer | below)

- 2.50
Fersign Currency loan from bank (RBL Bank) (secured) (refer 2 below} - 14.17
WCTL under ECLGS form Kotak Bank (secured) (refer sub note 1 of note 11A} 6.36 3.00
WOCTL under ECLGS form RBL Bank (secured) (refer sub note 2 of note 11A) 17.60 5.87
Indian rupee loan from enterprise under same control (refer sub note 7 of note 11A4) - 43.70
Total Current maturity of Indian currency loan 24.66 69.91
Total current borrowings 75.89 198.17
Secured 75.89 198,17
Unsecured

d. Below tables represents the sumimary of reconciliation of the quarterly statements of current assets filed by the Company with HDFC Bank and RBL Bank:

i} quarter ended 30 June 2021 (T in millions)

R iting items
Particulars As per statement filed cconcng Total As per baoks of Difference® >
X Y accounts
[nventory 274,70 - - 27470 27528 -0.58
Trade receivables 456.38 - - 450.38 501.76 -45.38

Trade payables 254.61 120.58 - 375.19 375.19

i) quarter ended 30 September 2021 (¥ in millions)

Particulars As per staty t filed Reconciling items Total As per books of Difference®
X* Y accounts
Inventory 25951 - - 259.51 262.94 -3.43
Trade receivables 345.36 - - 345.36 344 .42 0.94
Trade payables 168.20 109.84 - 278.04 278.04 -

iii) quarter ended 31st December 2021 (T in millions)

R iling items
Particulars As per statement filed e e Fotai As per books of Difference”
X* Y accounts
Inventory 307.75 - - 367.75 308.90 -L1s
Trade receivables 277.85 - - 277.85 272.8% 4.96

Trade payables 199.37 114.42 - 314.19 3i4.19

iv) quarter ended 31st March 2022

(2 in mitlions)
Particulars As per stat t filed Reconciling items Total As per books of Difference”
X* Y accounts
[nventory 269.22 - - 269.22 269.22 -0.00
Trade receivables 571.36 - - 371.36 578.40 -7.04
Trade payables 232.15 130.90 - 343.05 343.05 -

* Note : Non-trade vendors have been excluded from trade payables reported to the lendors.
** Statements had been submitted to bank prior to the limited review/ statutory andit. At the time of limited review/statutary audit, there were certain adjustments made
related to provision for sales return, discounts and doubtful debts, which resulted into difference between statements submitted to barks and books of accounts of the
company.
"~ Differences between statements furnished to banks for quarters ended 30-09-2021, 31-12-2021 & 31-03-2022 and boaks of accounts are not material.

Notes:

1. Company has taken term loan from RBL Bank Limited in financial year 2017-18 which carries interest at 10.20% p.a. (flexi) repayable in 12 quarterly instalments starting
from May-2018. . The lean is secured by way of (i) Ficst pari passu charge on entire existing and future current assets (i) First pari passu charge over entire existing and
future fixed asset of the Company, and (iii} Corporate Guarantee of § Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Gurantee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr. Dinesh Kumar
Jhunjhnuwala. Due to COVID -19, Bank has aliowed the moratorium period for the principal due for the quarter payabie in the month o{‘Makly-2020.

\
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New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited
Notes to financial staterments for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: UZ21HDLI013PTC262320

2. Company has taker foreign currency term loan from RBL Bank Limited in financial year 2017-18 which caries interest at 9.75% p.a. repayable in 12 quarierly instalments
starting from May-2018. The loan is sccured by way of (i) First pari passu charge on entire existing and future current assets (ii) First pari passu charge over the entire
existing and future fixed asset of the Company, and (iii) Corporate Guarantee of $ Chand And Company Limited, (iv) Personal Guraniee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta and Mr,
Dinesh Kumar Jhunjknuwala, Interest is to be paid on monthly basis. Principal and inlerest both are fully hedged by RBL Bank Limited. Due to COVID -19, Bank has
allowed the moratorium period for the principal due for the quarter payable in the monti of May-2020,

3A. Cash Credit from HDFC bank under multiple banks arrangment with Kotak Bank and RBL Bank is carrying an interest rate of 9.71% p.a. (31 March 2021; 10.23% pa.)
repayable on demand. The loan is secured by way of (i) first pari passu charge on entire existing and future current asset (ii} first pari passu charge on entire existing and

future movable fixed assets of the company (iii} Corporate Guarantee by $ Chand And Company Limited. (iv) Personal Guraniee of Mr. Himanshu Gupta ang Mr. Dinesh
Kumar Jhunjhnuwala.

4. The Company has not reccived any fund from any person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding {whether recorded in writing or
otherwise) that the Company shalk:

(a} directly or indirectly lend or inves: in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(b) provide any guarantee, securily or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

5. The Company has not been declared as a wilful defauller by any lender who has powers to declare 2 company as a wilful defaulter at any time during the financial year or
after the end of reporting period but before the date when financial statements are approved.

6. The Charges related to the above toans have been registered with the Registrar of Companies (ROC). The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yei to
be registered with the ROC beyond the statutory peried.

Trade payables
(T in millions)
As af As at
Parti
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current
Trade payabies of micro enterprises and small enterprises (refer note 34) 30.27 28.25
‘I'rade payables of related entities (refer note RPT note} 141.57 227.37
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and smali enterprises 171.21 152 81
Teotat trade payables 343.05 408.43
Below table represents the trade payables ageing:
Particulars Less than 1 i-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Fotal
year y
As at 31 March 2022:
a) Undisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises 30.27 0.00 - - 30.27
Others 257.41 49.39 5.98 - 312,78
287.68 49.3% 5.98 - 343.05
b) Disputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and small enterprises - - . - .
Others - - - - -
Total Trade Payabies 287.68 49.39 5.98 - 343.05
Asat 31 March 2021:
a} Undisputed trade payabies
Micro enterpriscs and small enterprises 2825 - - - 28.25
Others 260.89 59.21 60.08 - 380,18
289.14 59.21 60.08 - 408.43
b} Drisputed trade payables
Micro enterprises and smali enterprises - - - - -
Cthers - - - - -
Total Trade Payables 289.14 59.21 60.08 - 468.43
P b
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 315t March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

13A,

13B.

14.

15.

Other financia! liabilities

(F in millions)

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest acerued on current borrowings - 0.79
Employee related payables 23.98 21.49
TFotal other financia) labilities 2398 22.28
Current 2398 22.28
Non current - -
Other financial liabilities : Leases
(Z in millions)
Particulars As at As at
] 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Lease Liablilty- Current (refer note-29) 23.74 14.60
Lease Liabtilty- Non Current (refer note-29) 69.50 69,27
Total ether financial Habilities 93.24 83.87
Provisions
(¥ in millions)
As at As at

Particulars

31 Mareh 2022

31 March 2021

Provision for gratuity (Non Curreat) (refer note 28(b))

Provision for leave encashment (Nonr-Current) (refer note-28(c) and 28(d))
Provision for leave encashment (Current) (refer note-28(c) and 28(d))
Total Provisions

Current

Non current

Other liabilities

- 0.24
0.43 0.32
4.25 3.56
4.68 4.12
4.25 3.56
0.43 0.56

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

As at
31 March 2022

As at
31 March 2021

Statutory dues
Advance from customer
Total Other Labilities

Current

Non current

[This space has been intentionally left blank]
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New Saraswati House (Tndia) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U221 10DL2013PTC262320

16,

Revenue from contract with customers

(T in millions)

For the year ended

Far the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Sale of products
Finished goods i,175.84 1,066 45
Less: Discount (286.13) (286.90)
889.71 779.55
Other operating revenue
Scrap sales 3.87 2.79
Total revenue from operations §93.58 782.34
India 893.09 781.88
Qutside India 0.49 046
893.58 782.34
Timing of revenue recognition
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Goods transferred at a point in time 893 58 78234
893.58 782.34

The Company collecis Goods and Service Tax (GST), where ever applicable, on behalf of the Government and hence, GST is not inctuded in revenue from

contract with customers,

Contract balances

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

578.40
9.37

Trade receivables
Contract liabitities (advance from customer)

600.61
15.87

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 150 days. For year ended March 2022 % 7.06 million was reversed from provisions
for expected credit loss and ¥ 9.16 millions were reversed on account of write ofl (March 2021: 2 12,53 million was recognised as provision far expected

credit losses on trade receivables).

Right to reture asset and refund liability

For the year ended

Particulars 31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Refund Habilities

Anising from discounts 169.22 13547
Arising from rights of retum 270,58 301.98
439.80 437.45

Reconciling the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit and loss with the contracted price

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Revenue as per contracled price 1,600.37 147957
Adjustinents

Sales return 420.44 410.33
Discount 286.15 286.90
§93.58 782.34

Performance obligation
Information about the Company’s performance obligatiens are summarised below:

Manufactured goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upen delivery of the goods 1o the fransporter designated by the customer or 1o the cusiomer whichever is carlier.

The customer has a right to refurn material to an extent as may be agreed upon with cach customer ar within the limils as may be determined by the company.

The customer is also eligible for discounts based on achievement of revenue largets as may be agreed.

For New Sargswati House firhdiag i 1od
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New Saraswatt House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 3ist March 2022
CIN: U22110DL.2¢13PTC262320

17.  Other incoine

(% in millions)

Particutars For the year ended For the year ¢nded
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Finance income
Interest income on
- Bank deposits 0.05 0.14
- Others 0.34 0.96
Unwinding of interest on security deposit 0.83 1.16
Foreign exchange differences (net) - 1.85
Miscellaneous income 2.59 10.41
Reversal of bad debts provisions 7.06 -
Amount written back 3.01 545
Grand Total 13.88 19.97
[This space has been mientionally fefi blank]
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

18.

19.

T T T

Cost of published goods/raw material consumed

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Inventories at the beginning of the vear
Add : Purchases of published books
Add : Purchases of paper

Less : Inventories at the end of the year
Total Cost of material consumed

Total Cost of published goods/raw material consumed
Details of raw material purchased

Paper
Books

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories

41.22 74.00
156.81 145.62
168.55 72.50
366.58 292.12
(78.77) (41.22)
287.81 250.90
187.81 250.90
168.55 72.50
156.81 145.62
32536 218.12

Particulars

For the vear ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Inventories at the end of the year
Finished goods

190.45 216.04

190.45 216.04
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Finished goods 216.04 294 41

216.04 294.41
{Increase)/decrease in inventories 25.59 78.37
Details of Inventories

d
Particulars For the year ended For the year ende

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Finished goods
- Manufactured goods
Books

{This space has been intentionally lefi blank]
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 315t March 2022

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

20,

Employee benefit expenses

(T in millions}

Particulars

For the year cnded
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 202t

Salaries, wages and bonus

19728 166.56
Contribution to prevident and other funds 13.58 12.11
Gratuity expense (refer note 28b) 3.75 4.30
Employee stock option expense (refer note 43) 1.45 -
Staff welfare expenses 267 2.09
Totat employee benefit expenses 218.73 185.06
21. Finance cost
(T in millions)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Interest
« On borrowings 3842 48.73
= On lease liability 10.28 10.12
- Om other tizbilities 0.05 3.13
Bank charges .09 0.29
Lean processing fee 0.08 i.10
Tatai finance cost 48.92 63.43
22. Depreciation and amortisation expenses
(T in millisns)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 202}
Depteciation of property, plant & equipment (refer note 3) 6.51 6.74
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4a) 2450 25.55
Depreciation of right to use asset (refer note 4b) 27.69 26.80
Total depreciation and amortisation ¢xpenses 59.10 59.09
23. Publication expenses

(¥ in millions)

Particulars For the year ended 31 For the vear ended 31
March 2022 March 2021
Printing, binding and processing charges 16.40 14.92
Royalty expenses 42.70 3871
Freight arnd cartage expenses 0,44 1.41
Total publication expenses 59.54 55.04

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

24. Other expenses

{¥ in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Rent (refer note 29)

438 4 46
Repair and maintenance -
-Buildings 0.73 0.79
-Other 538 3.80
Insurance 243 1.86
Rates and taxes 0.25 1.98
Communication cost 2.54 2.30
Legal and professional fee 917 12.52
Shared services cost (refer note 44) 16.15 14.79
Payment to auditor {refer note below) .48 1 49
Printing and stationery 1.84 1.09
Postage 870 4.74
Water and electricity charges 4.06 3.55
Office expenses 2913 29.65
Advertisement, publicity and exhibition 16.82 958
Travelling and conveyance 32.64 18.29
Freight and distribution 2475 18.50
Packing expenses 224 2,15
Vehicle runaing and maintenance 243 249
Security expenses 1.33 1.32
Membership and subscription 011 0.i7
Donation 4.00 0.99
Recruitment charges 012 -
Bad debt written ofl - 0.46
Provision for bad & doubtful debts - 12,53
Provision for advances 0.7 -
Misc. Balance Written Off 0.19 277
Forex Loss 1.44 -
Laoss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 002 (.06
Miscellaneous expenses 1.55 0.16
Total other expenses 174.59 152,93

Payment to auditor

{T in millions)

For the year ended

Particutars For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As auditor
Audit fee 0.50 0.50
Limited review fees ¢.60 0,70
In other capacity
Others 038 0,29
1.48 1.49

Components of Other Comprehensive Income {OCI)
The disaggregation of changes in other comprehensive income by each type of cquity is shown below:

(T in milliens)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

e e

Re-measurement pairs/(losses) on defined benefit plans
Tax impact on re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans

ERS IR

239 4.73
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New Saraswati House (Endia)} Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 315t March 2022
CIN: U22110D1L.2013P T (262320

6.

2Ta.

17h.

Earnings per share

Basic EPS amounis are calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to equity holder by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during

the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are czlculated by dividing the profit for the year atributable w cquity holder by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding
during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of ail dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares.

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS compuiations

(T in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2621

Profit atiributable to equity hoider of the company for computing basic EPS

238.79 (42.51)
238.79 {42.51)
Profit altributable to equity holder of the company for computing diluted FP§
Net profit as above 23879 (42.51)
Add: Interest en debentures {net of tax) - -
238.79 (42.51)
Weighted average number of equity shares used for computing -

- Basic EPS 27,236 27,236
- Diluted EPS* 1,36,67,225 251,455
Basic EPS 8,767 (1,561)
Dituted EPS 17 (169)

*Company has issued 1,36,39,989 CCPS on March 26, 2021 which have dilutive potential in year ended 31 March 2022

Income taxes

(¥ in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Income tux charged to statement of profit and loss
Current income tax charge
Adjustment of taxes for earlier years
Deferred tax charge

(205.61)

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss {205,61)

OCI section

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCT doring the year

Net loss/{gain) on remeasurement ot defined benefit plan (0 .60)

Income tax charged to OCE {0.60)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax ratg for 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021:

{T in millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2021

T T A T

Accounting profit before tax

33,18 (42.51)
At India's statutory income tax rate of 25.17% 8.33 {12.38)
Deductible expenses for tax purposs (16.94) (21.41)
Incemes not chargable to tax (0.58) {2.80}
Non-deductibic expenses for tax purposes 40,72 25.63
Nen recognition of deferred tax assets on currrent year losses (31.55) 10.96
Dre-recogmtion of opening deferred tax assics 205,61 -
Total income tax expense For K, Sambwa ‘ 205.61 0.00
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Naotes to financial statements for the period ended 315t March 2022
CIN: U22110D1.2013PTC262320

28. Employec benefits

a

Defined contribution plan

An amourt of ¥ 12,14 million {31 March 2621 - % 10.99 naiflion]
Provident Fund, an amount of Z 0.47 million [31 March 2021 : T 0 50 miltion] for the
towards Employee Statc Insurance and an amount of 7 0.93 miltion |31 March 2021
Company’s contributions towards National Pension Scheme, which
expenses in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Gratuity

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Under the gratuit

for the year has been recognised as an cxpense in respeet of the Company’s contributions towards
year has been recognised as an expense in respect of Company's contributions
T0 62 million} for the vear has been recognised as an expense in respect of the
are deposited with the government authorities and have been included under employee benefit

y plan, every employce who has completed at least five year of service gets a gratuity on departure

at 15 days of fast drawn salary for each completed year of service or part thereof in excess of six months subject to & maximum of Rs. 2.00 millions. The scheme is

fnded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy.

The following tables summarize the components of net benefit ex
Gratuity Plan,

Statement of Profit & Loss account
Net employee benefit expense recognised in employee Cost:

pense recognised in the profit and loss account and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for

(¥ in millions)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Current service cost 374 393
Interest cost on defined obligation 1.35 1.22
Interest income on plan asset (1.35; {0.85)
3.74 4.30

Amaunt recognised in Other Comprehensive Tncome:

{Z in miltions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Actuarial {gains) / losses on obligation
Actuarial gains / (losses) on assets

Balance sheet
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit abligation are as follows;

{1.69) (1.98}
(0.70) (2.75)
(2.39) (4.73)

(T in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2621

Opening defined benefit obtigation

19.70 18.14
Current service cost 374 393
Interest cost 135 1.22
Benefits paid {2.42) (1.61)
Actuarial (gains} / losses on obligation {1.69) (1.98)
Closing defined benefit obligation 20.68 19.79
Current Portign - -
Non - Current Portion 20.68 19.70
Changes in the fair value of plan assets are as follows: (X in mitlions)
Particulars Feor the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 202}
Opening fair value of plan assets 19.45 12.56
Expected return 1.35 0.85
Contributions by employer 3.00 4.90
Benefits paid {2.42) {16
Actuarial gain/{loss) 0.70 2,75
Closing fair value of plan asscts 22.08 19.45

The Company contributed Rs. 3 miilions this year (31 March 202}: Rs. 4.9 miltions)

The major categories of plan assets as a percentage of the fair value of total plan assets are as follows:

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Investments with insurer

The economic and demographic assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the company’s plans are shown below:

100%

100%

Particutars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Discount rate 7.31% 6.94%
Expected rate of return on assets 7.70% T70%
Expected rate of salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement Age (In year) 60 year 60 year
Employee turnover -

~ Age upto 30 year 3.00% 3.06%

- Age 31 - 44 year 2.00% 2.00%

- Age above 45 year 1.00% 1.00%

Mortatity Rate

[ALM (2012-14) Ultimate TALM (2012-14) Ultimate

The estimates of future salary incredses, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and

demand in the employment market.
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New Saraswati House {India} Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262310

The overali expected rate of return on assets is determined based en the market prices prevailing on that date, applicable to the period over which the obligation is to

be settled.

The impact of sensitivity analysis duc to changes in the significant actuarial assumptions on the defined benefit obligations is given in below table:

Particulars Change in assnmptions As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount rate + 1% (18.34) (17.3%)
- 1% 2347 22.56
Expected rate of salary increase +1% 23.342 22,44
- 1% (18.417) (17.30)

The sensitivity analyses above have been determincd based on a method that extrapelates the impact en defined benefit obligation as a resul

key assumptions occurring at the end of the reperting period.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future year:

t of reasonable changes in

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Year 1 0.46 .37
Year 2 0.67 (.50
Year 3 0.77 062
Year 4 .64 0.70
Year 5 0.66 341
Year 610 10 4,85 4.87
Above 10 Years 51.03 48.34

The average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period is 17.14 year (31 March 2021: 17.70 year).

¢.  Leave Encashment for Sick Leaves

In respect of leave encashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of 2 year-end actuarial valuation in pursuance of the Company’s leave raies,

The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuaria? valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.

The following table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan:

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Present value of Defined Benefiz Obligation
Current Liability
Non Current Liability

Discount Rate at Year - end

Financial Assumptions
Discount Rate

Salary Increase Rate

Demographic Assumptions
Mortality Rate

Withdrawal Rate

Retirement age

1.37
012
1.2%
7131%

1.31%
6.00%

IALM {2012-14)
Ultimate

Upto 30 years - 3%

31 - 44 years - 2%

45 years and above -1%

1.46
0.12
1.34
6.94%

6.94%
6.00%

TALM (2012-14)
Ultimate

Upto 30 years - 3%

31 - 44 years - 2%

45 years and above -1%

60 years 60 years
Leave Avaiiment (%) 1008, 1.00%
Expected Future Cashflows
Year | 0.12 G612
Year 2 0.12 0.i2
Year 3 0.13 G613
Year 4 0.13 0.13
Year 5 0.11 013
Year 6 10 10 0.60 0.61
Above 10 Years 1.59 1.73
2.80 2.97
Sensitivity Analysis
. As at As at
Particulars “hs i i
Change in assumptions 31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount Rale <% (127 (135
-1% 1.49 1.59
Expected rate of salary increase + 1% 1.49 1.59
- 1% (1.27) (1.35)
RS TSI
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2622

CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

d. Leave Encashment for Paid Leaves

Tn respect of leave encashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of a year-end actuaria!
The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the actuarial
The foltowing table sets out for the status of leave encashment plan

valuation in pursuance of the Company's icave rilgs,
valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

For the year caded
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

Present value of Defined Benefit Objigation
Current Liability

Non Current Liability
Discount Rate at Year - end

Financial Assumptions
Discouat Rate

Salary Increase Rate

Demographic Assumptions

3.30
0.31

2.99
731%

7.31%
6.00%

2.41
0.21
2.21
6945

6.94%
6.00%

e T ST T

e

For New Saras¥

{ House (india)

Mortality Rate TALM (2012-14), TALM (2012-14)
Ultimate Ultimate
Withdrawal Rate Upto 30 years - 3% Upto 30 years - 3%
31~ 44 years - 2% 31 - 44 years - 2%
45 years and above -1%] 45 years and above -1%
Retirement age 60 vears 60 years
Leave Availment (%) 1.00% 1.00%
Expected Feture Cashflows
Year | 231 0.21
Year 2 0.31 0.21
Year 3 .32 0.22
Year 4 0.32 0322
Year 5 0.29 0.22
Year610 10 1.46 1.01
Above 10 Years 360 277
6.61 4.86
Sensitivity Analysis
Particuiars Change in assumptions As at As at
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
Discount Rate + 1% (3.06} {2.23)
- 1% 3.57 2.63
Expected rate of salary increase v 1% 3.57 2.63
- 1% (3.06) (2.23)
[This space has been mentionally left blunk} P\!t L d.
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 385t March 2022
CIN: U22110D1L.2013PTC262320

29.

Leases

Company as lessee

The Company has adopted Ind AS 36 "Leases” from 15t April 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies in the financial statements.

Transition

Effective 01 April 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS {16 “Leases” and applied the standard 1o all lease contracts existing on 01 April 2019 using

the madified Tetrospective (atternative 1) approach, Comparatives as al and for the year ended 31 March 2019 have not been retrospectively
adjusted.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of Right-of-Use asset (ROU) of 2 151.42 million (afier adjustment of 2 6,80
million against lease equalisation reserve) with a corresponding leasc Hability of T 158.22 miliion. Ind AS 116 has resulted in an increase in cash

inflows from operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activilies on account of leasc payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:
1, Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leascs with less than 12 months of lease term on the date of initial

application.

3. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

4. The company has also elecied nol to reassess whether a contraci is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the company relied on its assessment made applying Ind AS 17 and Appendix C to Ind AS 17, Determining

whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period;

(T in_millions)

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2021

As at 01 April 74.7G 11922
Additions 34,12 30.05
Deletion (0.85) (39.71)
Adjustment of opening RER provisions - -
Remeasurement impact - (8.06)
Depreciation expense (27.69) (26.80}
As at 31 March 80.28 74.70

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities (included under interest-bearing loans and borrowings) and
the movements during the period:

{Z in millions)

For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2021
As at 0Y April 83.87 133.28
Additions 34.14 30.05
Deletion 091 44.21)
Accretion of interest 10.28 10.12
Remeasurenient impact - (9.62)
Payments (excluding saving due to COVID-19 0f 2 1.42 million} (34.14) (35.75)
As at 31 March 93.24 83.87
Current 23.74 14.60
Non-current 69.50 6927
* The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 10%, with maturity between 2021-2026
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss: (X in millions)
For the year ended For the year ended

31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Depreciation expense of right-of-use asseis

27.69 26.80
Interest expense on kease liabilities 10.28 10.12
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in other expenses) 438 4.46
Remeasurement impact - (1.506)
(Gain)/Loss on premature termination of Lease Agreement (0.06) (4.48}
{Gain)/Loss on lease rental waiver due to COVID-19* (142} (2.42)
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 40.87 31.92

The Company had total cash outflows for leases of T 34.14 million in 31 March 2022 (31 March 2021: T 35.75). The Company alse had non-cash
additions to right-of-use assets of T 34.12 millicn and lease liabilities of  34.12 millien, corresponding deletion was of T 0.85 miilion and T 0.91
million respectively in 31 March 2022 (non-cash additions to right-of-use assets of T 3005 million and lease liabilities of T 39.71 million,
corresponding deletion was of ¥ 39,71 million and % 44.21 million respectively in 31 March 2021).
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

The Company has several lease contracts that incjude extension and termination options. These options are negotiated by management to provide
flexibility in managing the leased-asset portfolic and align with the Company business needs. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The company docs not face a significant liguidity risi with regard 1o its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to meet the obligations
related to Jease liabilities as and when they fall due.

Rentai expense recorded for short-lerm leases was < 4.38 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 (FY 2020-21 was ¥ 4.46 million).

The aggregate depreciation on ROU assets has been included under depreciation and amortisation expense in the Statemnent of Profit and Loss.

*Pue to amendment in [nd-AS 116, Leases (COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions), company has recorded gain of 2 1.42 miliion in other income.

30. Related party disclosure

a, Names of related parties and related party relationship
Related parties where control exists
Helding Company S Chand and Company Limited

Related parties with whom transactions have taken place during the year
Enterprises under same control S Chand and Cempany Limited
Nirja Publishers & Printers Privaie Limited
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited
DS Digita! Private Limited
BPI (India) Private Limited
S. Chand Edutech Private Limited
Chhaya Prakashani Limited
S. Chand Properties Private Limited

Enterprise over which KMP or their relatives SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited
exercise significant influence

Key management personnel Dinesh Kumar Jhunjhnuwata, Directer
Himanshu Gupta, Director
Ankita Gupta, Director
Rajagopalan Chandrashekar, Independent Director
Shammi Manik, CEO (w.e.f. 11 February 2020)
Narander Kumar, Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. {1 February 2020)
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New Sarsswatl House (India} Private Limited
Notes 1o financiad statements for the yest ended 3t March, 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

) Related party transactions
The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have buea entered inte with related partics during the period/year:

Holding Eaterprise E!;ZP;:Z:;:;V::::!: Koy Relattve of
Particular Year ended under same managerial Key managerial Total
company Persennel exerelse
control personnel personnel
significant influence
Sale of hooks
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2022 - 0.5% - - - 0.55
3! March 2021 - .66 - - - 0.66
Sale of paper
5 Chand And Company Limited 3! March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 8.23 . - - - 813
Vikas Publishing Housc Private Limited 31 March 2022 - . - B - -
31 March 2021 - 0.82 - - - ¢.82
Misecitaneous Income
8. Chand Edutech Private Limited 31 March 2022 - .03 - - - @03
31 March 2071 - DU - - - .03
Purchase of books/Paper
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 - 029 - - - 0.29
Joh Work- Binding & Printing
S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 304 - - - - 144
31 March 2024 £9.3% - - - - 19.28
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2022 . 66.80 - - - 66.8¢
31 March 2021 - 3345 - - - 3345
Tour & Fravel Expenses
SC Hotel Tourist Detuxe Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - .03 - - 0.03
31 March 2021 - - 0.06 - - D.06
License Fee (QR Code)
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2022 . 242 - - - 2.42
31 March 202 - 235 - - - 235
Legal and professions]
Safari Digital Education Iniliatives Private Limited 31 March 2022 - 637 - - - 6.37
31 March 2021 - k91 - - - £91
$ Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 1615 - - - - 16.15
31 March 2021 14.79 - - - - 14.7%
Royalty paid
BP] (India) Private Limited 3% March 2022 - - - - -
3% March 2021 - [iLO0}) - - {8.00)
Interest on Term Loan
3 Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 12,13 - - - 1213
31 March 2021 1529 - - - - 15.2¢
Niria Publishers & Printers Private Limited 3§ March 2022 - 4.24 - - - 4.24
31 March 202] - 369 - - - .69
Chhays Prakashani Limited 33 March 2022 - 097 - - - 0.97
31 March 2021 - 1.27 - - - 7.27
Rent expenses
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Privite Limited 31 Mareh 2022 - - .34 - - 10.34
31 March 2021 - - 9.39 - ’ . 9.3y
Ankita Gupta 31 March 2022 - - - 0.50 - 058
31 March 202t - - - 045 - 0.48
Reimbursement of expeases
* Medical cxpenses
§ Licence fee, lunch and balance transfers
> Fuel, repair & maintenance, driver salary
8 Chand And Company Limited {5) 31 March 2022 236 - - - - 2.36
31 March 202! 0.62 - - - - 0.62
8C Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited (%) 31 March 2022 - - .07 - - 0.07
31 March 2021 - - - - -
8. Chand Propertics Private Limited () 31 March 2022 - - .05 - - 0.05
31 March 2021 - - - - - -
8. Chand Edutech Privaic Limited (%) 31 March 2022 - - .07 - - 0.07
31 March 2021 - - - - - -
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited () 31 March 2022 - - Q.04 - - 0.04
31 March 2023 - - - - - -
DS Digital Private Limited (%) 31 March 2022 - - a.07 - - n.07
31 March 202} - - - - - -
Ankita Gepta () 31 March 2072 - - - 1.05 - 1.05
31 March 2021 - - - 0.97 - 0.97
Fixed assets purchased
S Chand Ard Company Limited 31 March 2822 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 0.ad - - - - 0.01
Lean availed Suring the year
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - . - . -
31 Mareh 2021 - TR.70 B - - 1870
S Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2822 - - - - - -
31 March 202 40.00 B - - - 40.00
Chhaya Prakashan; Limiled 3t March 2022 - B - - - -
3! Mareh 2021 - 1000 - - - 10.00
Lean repaid during the year
Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31 March 2012 - . B - - -
3} March 2021 - 5.00 - - s.00
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
3§ March 2021 - 15.00 . - - 15.00
S Chand And Company Limiled 31 March 2022 - - - - -
3! March 2021 15.00 - - - - §5.00
Conversion of Loan to Prefrence Shares
Chhaya Prakashant Limited 3 March 2022 - . - - -
31 March 2021 - 1250 - - 72.50
S Chand Ard Company Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - -
31 Mareh 2021 50,40 - - - 590.00
58 {inda)
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New Saraswati House (Indiz) Private Limited
Nates fo financial statements for the year ended 31 March, 2022
CIN: U22H0DE2GFIPTC2E2328

b}  Related party rransactions

. Enterprise Enterprise over which Key Relative of
Parteutar Year caded Holding under same Key Management managerial key managerial Total
campany Personnel exereise
control personnel persennz)
significant influcnce
Dircctor remuperation*
Ankita Gupla 31 March 2022 - - - 0.33 - 0.33
31 March 202] - - - .10 - 2.10
Director Sitfing Fee
Rajgopalan Chandrashekiar 31 March 2022 - . . 0.10 . 0.1
31 March 2031 - - - - -
Remunration of KMP (full year)
Shammi Manik 31 Mareh 2022 - - 822 . 8.22
31 March 2021 - - - 594 - 5.94
Narendra Kumar 31 March 2022 - - - 3.04 - 304
31 March 2021 - - - 210 - .10
*Including perquisites paid during the year for year cnded Msr'31 2022,
Outstanding balance as at the year end
N Enterprise Enterprise over which Key Relative of
Particular Year cnded Holding under same Key Mnmgc:m:.m managerial key managerial Tatal
company contrel Persounel exercise personnel persornel
significant influence
Trade payable
3 Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 68.54 - - - - 6B.64
31 March 202! 68.70 - - - - 6B.70
Vikas Publishing House Private Limited 31 March 2022 - 72.92 - - - 7192
31 March 202) - 149,30 - - - 14930
$C Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 3t March 2022 - - 001 - . [LX4)]
31 Mareh 202] - - 0.0] - . ®0F
Other Wabilities - Creditar
Safari Digitat Education Initiatives Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 - B.86 - - - 3.86
Salary receivable
Anlkita Gupla 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 202 - - - 0.62 - 9.62
Trade recelvable
§. Chand Edutech Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - - . -
31 March 2021 . 0.03 - - - .03
BPI] (India) Private Limited 31 March 2022 B .03 - - - D03
31 March 2021 - 003 - - - 003
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Privale Limied 11 March 2022 - .02 - - - D.02
33 March 2021 - 0.04 - - - D.04
DS Digital Private Limaited 3§ March 2022 - - - . - -
31 March 202} - 5.35 - - - 533
Loans & advances 1o related parties
DS Digttal Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 - D.62 - - - 0.62
BPM (india) Private Limited 31 March 2022 - 0.07 - - - 0.0
31 March 2021 - ©.09 - - - 0.0%
Security deposit
SC Hotel Tourist Deluxe Private Limited 31 March 2022 - - 4.20 - - 4.20
31 March 2021 - - 4.20 - - 4.20
Ankita Gupta 31 March 2022 - - - 6.19 - 219
31 March 2021 - - - G.19 - 19
Short term foan
Nirja Publishers & Printers Private Limited 31 March 2022 . 43170 - . - 43.70
31 March 202t - 437 - - - 43.70
Chhaya Prakashani Limnited 31 March 2022 - 10.00 - - 1000
31 March 2021 - 10.00 - - - 10.00
& Chand And Company Limited 31 March 2022 125.00 - - - - 125.00
31 March 2021 125.00 - - - - 125.00
Intercst accrued and due on borrowings
Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31 March 2022 - - - - - -
31 March 2021 - u.36 - - 0.36
3 Chand And Company Limied 3! March 2022 - - - - - -
3% March 2621 043 - - - - 0.43
Preference Shares
§ Chand And Company Limited 31 Maich 2022 3570 - - - - 5570
31 March 2021 5570 - - - - 55.70
Chhaya Prakashani Limited 31 March 2022 - 2070 - - - 80.70
31 March 2021 - 80.70 - - - 30,70
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New Suraswati House {India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U221 10DL2013PTC262320

31

3z,

33

34,

35,

36,

37,

33

Details of dues to micra, smail and medium chterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

(¥ in millions)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2022

For the year ended
31 March 2621

The principat amount and the interest due thereon (10 be shown separately) remaining uapaid to any supplier as at the
end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and smal} enterprises
- Interest due on above

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of
the payment made ta the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year.

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the

interest ducs as above are actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

Unhedged foreign currency exposure

3027 2825
30.27 18,15
“ 0.96

The amount of foreign currency exposure that are not hedged by derivative instrument or otherwise as on 31 March 2622 and 31 March 2021 are as under:

Particular Foreign curre Amount in foreign currency (% in millions)
¢ OTElEn cutrency March 31,2022 March 31, 3621 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Receivables ushb 22,553 22,553 171 1.65
Exchange Rate used per USD 7590 7317
Expenditure in foreign currency (accruai basis)
& in millions)
Particul Fyr the year ended For the year ended
articulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Advertising and sales promotion 0.57 -

0.57 -
Earnings in foreign currency

¥ in_millions)
Particul For the year ended For the year ended
arfieuiars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021

Exports of F.O.B. Value 049 0.46

.49 0.46
Imported and indigenous raw materials consumed

. Percentage (%) {¥ in millions)

Raw Materials March 31,2022 March 31, 2031 March 31, 2032 March 31, 2021
Imported 0% 0% - -
indigenous 100% 100% 168,55 72.50

Scgment reporting

The Company has only one reportable business segment, which is publishing of books and operates in a single business scgment based on the nature of the services, the risk
and retumns, the organization structure and the internal financial reporting systems. Accordingly, the amounts appearing in the financial statements relate to the Company's

single business segment.

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR}

{Z in millions)

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

(a) Gross amount required required to be spent by the Company during the year
(b) Amount spent dwing the year

Company doesn’t carry any provision for CSR cxpenses for current year and previcus year

Significant Customer

The Company does not have any significant customer for the year ended 31 March 2022, (Also there was no significant customer having sales aggregating to 10% of otat

revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021
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New Saraswati House {India} Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

39. Financial Instruments:- Finaneial risk management objectives and policies
The Company’s principal financial liabilities, other than derivatives, comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables, and financial guarantee
contracts. The main purpose of these tinancial Habilities is to finance the Group’s operations and 1o provide guarantees o support its operations. The
Company’s principal {tnancial assets include joans, trade receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management overseas the management of these risks and
advises on financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The board provides assurance to the shareholdet's
that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and
managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Direclor reviews and agrees policies for managing cach of these
risks, which are summarised below.

A. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrutment will fluctuate because of changes in market prices.
Market risk comprises three types of risk:-

a.) Interest rate risk,

b.} currency risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and

c.) commodity risk.

Financial instruments affected by market risk inctude loans and borrowings, investments, deposits, advances and derivative financial instruments.

The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021,

The sensitivity analyses have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt, the ratio of floating lo fixed interest rates of the debt and
derivatives and the proportion of financial instruments in foreign currencies are all constant in place at 31 March 2022

The analyses exclude the impact of movements in market variables on: the carrying vaues of gratuity and other post-retirement obligations; provisions.
The sensitivity of the relevant profit or loss item is the effect of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

a. Interest vate risk,

Interest rale risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of 2 financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The

Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest ratcs relates primatily to the Company’s long-term debt obtigations with fixed interest
rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonabiy possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans and botrowings affected, after

the impact of hedge accounting. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit beforc tax is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as follows;

{% in millions)

Particulars Increase/decrease in Effect an profit Effect on equity
basis points before tax {OCI)

As at March 31,2022

iNR Borrowings +0.5% (1.49) -
-0.5% 1.49 -

As at March 31, 2021

INR Borrowings +0.5% (2.00) -
-0.5% 2.00 -

b. Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an expasure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The

Company's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarity to the Company’s operating aclivities (when revenue or expense is
denominated in a foreign currency)

The company does not hedge its foreign currency exposure, however the sensitivity analysis is given as below for the currencics, in which Company has
foreign exposure:

{T in millions)

Particulars Changes in forcign Effect on profit Effect on equity
currency rates before tax (OCD

For the year ended March 31, 2022 +3% 0.09 -
UsD -5% 0.09) -
For the year ended March 31, 2021
usp +5% 0.08 -

5%, {0.08) -
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New Saraswati Honse (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

B.

40,

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is not
exposed 10 any significant credit risk from its operating activitics (primarily trade receivables), includin

g deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign exchange
transactions and other financial instruments.

The Ageing analysis of trade receivables (ret) as of the reporting date is as follows:

( in millions)
55 6 5 - h
Age Bracket Not due Less than months V-2 years 2+ 3 years More than Total
6 nionths 1 year 3 years
As at 31 March 2021 396.08 55.04 7524 22.37 33.82 17.96 G00.61
As at 31 March 2022 459.04 16.00 33.46 2574 1242 31.74 S378.40
. Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company wili encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associaled with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
another financial asset. The Company’s chjective is 1o maintain a balance between continnity of funding and flexibility through the use of bank overdrafis, and bank loans.
The company's approach to managing liquidity to ensure | as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liability when they are due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage o the Comy

panys reputation. The Company ¢losely monitor its liquidity position and deploys a
robust cash management system. The Company manages liquidity

risk by maintaining adequate reserves, borrowing liabilitics, by centinuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows, profile of financial asseis and liabilities. t maintain adequate sources of financing including loans from banks al an oplimised cost.

The table below
provides the details regarding contractual maturities of financial Labilitics.

(T in millions)
As at Ag at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

On Demand
- Borrowings

Less than I year
- Borrowings

75.89 198.17
- Trade payables 343.05 408.43
- Caber financial liabilities 23.98 2228
442.92 62888

More than 1 year
- {nther financial liabilities 221.30 202.26
221.30 202,26

Capital management

Fer the purpose of the Company’s capilé! management, capital inctudes issued equity capital and all other equity reserves atsibutable to the cquity helder of the company.
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise the shareholder value,

The Company secks to maintain a balance between the higher retumns that might be pessible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position. The primary objective of the company's capital tnanagement 15 t¢ maximise the sharcholder valoe,

The Company monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s policy is to keep the pearing ratio fess than 70%.
The Company measures underlying net debt as total liabilities, comprising interest bearing loans and borrowings, cxciuding any ducs to subsidiaries or group companies less

cash and cash equivalents. For the purpose of capital management, total capital includes issued equily equity capital, share premium and all other reserves attributable to the
equity holder of the Company, as applicable.

Company's adjusted net debt 1o equity ratio as at 31 March 2022 is as follow: F in millions)

Gearing Rat As at As at
eanng Ratio March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Borowings {Note 11A & 11B) (including current mataritics)

29709 40043
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 51) {4.05} {94.16)
Adjusted Net debt {A} 293.15 306.27
Equity 54212 300.09
Total equity (B} 542.12 300.09
Total equity and net debt |C = {A+B)| 83527 606,36
Gearing Ratio (A/C) 35.10% 50.51%

In arder to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants altached to the inferest-
bearing; loans and borrowings that define capital structure requirements, Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would pennit the bank to immediately cal} loans and
borrowings. There have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowiny in the current period.

No changes were made in the cbjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended 31 March 2022 and 31 March 2021, k-
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New Saraswati House {India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL2013PTC262320

41. Fair value of financial assets and labilitics

{Tin millions)
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Amortized Cost FVTPL FVTOCI ‘““'(‘3':':'*"’ FVTPL FVTOCI
B

Asscts
Non Current Financial Assets
- Loans 6,30 - - 384 - -
- Other financial assets 010 - - .10 - -
Current Financial assets
-~ Loang 871 - - 12,73 - -
Liabilities
Non Current Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 22130 - - 202.26 - -
Current Financial iabiities
- Borrowings 75.39 - - 198,17 - -
« Other financial liabilitics 2398 - - 2228 - “

The following assumptions/ methods were used to estimate the fair vatues:

The fair values of trade receivables, cash and cash ¢

quivalents, cther current financiat assets, trade payable and cther current financial liabilities are considered 16 be same as their carying,
values due to their short term natire,

Qusntitative disclosures fair value measurement heirarchy for assets as ot March 31, 2622

(X in mitlions)

Fair vajue ement using

Significant

Qouted price in active Significant

market nb.serv:hlc ubobservabie inputs
Level 1 Inputs (Level 3
{ } (Level 2)
Assets measured at fair vatue
Loans - - 15.01
Other financial assets - - 016
Liabilities measured at fair value
Borawings - - 297.19
Other financial liabilitics - - 23.98
Quantitative disclosures fuir value measurement heirarchy for assets as at March 31, 2021 (T in mitlions)
Fair value ement using
Qouted price in active Significant Significant
observable R
market i " uhobscrvable inputs
(Level 1) ( I'_'::l ‘2 ) (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Loans - - 16.56
Other financial assets - - ale
Liabilities measured at fair value
Borrowings - - e 400.43
Other financia! liabilities - - N - 22.28
W o
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Nates o financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2622

CIN; 122810DL2013PTC262320

42. Disclosuse related to key financial ratios:

Key financial ratios

Numerator

Denominater

Current period
31 March 2022

Previous period
31 March 2021

% Yariance

Reason fur variance

4. Current ratio

Current assets

Curreut liabilities 1.77 1.45 22% NA

b. Debt-cquity ratio Total debt Sharghalder's equity 0.55 1.33 -59% a

. . Carning ilab} .
c. Debn service coverage ratio Earmings Vavallab o for Debt service** 1.85 0.88 11{% b
debi service®
. Net profits after laxes  Average
R .. . 14 .04 >

d. Retarn on equity —Preference dividend sharcholder’s equity 0 0 ~434% «

e. Inventory tumover Ratio :i:z; of goods sold or Average invenlory 1.83 151 22% NA

1. Trade receivables turncver ratic Net credit sales Av(:fage accannts 1.52 124 22% NA
receivable

%. Trade payables tumover ratio Net credil purchases Average made 6.87 G.48 80% d
payables

I Net capital turnover ratio Nel sates Working capital 237 2.62 -9% NA

i. Net profit ratio Net profit Net sales 0.27 -0.05 -592% e

j. Return on capital employed Faming before Capital emplayeg*** 040 0.03 228% f

i P pioy! intgrest and taxes P Py : o ¢

. [MV(TL) - MVITO)  {MV(T0) + Sum \
. R stment # N N N NA
k. Returi on investment ~ Sum [C(O] W * Co A A NA B

Explanation for variznces more than 25%: -

a. Debt-Equity Ratio : Duc 1o reinstatement of D'TA i eurrent financial vear: e
reduction in this ratio by 59%.

b. Debt service coverage ratio : Profit available t tender debt has been increased by almost 75%
due to Jower utilization of working capital Limits in current financial year.

<. Return on equity : There was loss in previous financial year as compare {o the profits in current £
d. Trade payable turnover ratio -
millions.

e, Nel Profit Ratio : There was loss in previous financial year as campart 1o the profi

£. Return on capital employed : - Profit availabic to tender debt has been increased b
limits,

quity increased by 2 203.01 millions and also debt redution o the tne of ¥ 103.24 millians has resulled into

from € 80.01 millions 1o  141.20 millions and further finance cost has also been reduced

nancial year, which has resulted into Tuge favourable variance in this ratio.
There is favourable variance on account of purchise increased by ¥ 107.24 millions and also amount payahle to vendors has been reduced by ¥ 77,24

ts in current financial year, which has resulied into huge favourable variance in this ratio
y almost 75% and further finance cost has also been reduced due o lower uwlilizaticn of working capital

43. Employee stock compensation

In 2012, the ultimate holding company instituted the ESOP Scheme 2012 (the “ESOP 2012™). Under the ESOP plan, the commiltee may grant awards of equity based stock options being
Growth options to the empioyees of uliimate lolding company and its subsidiarics. As per the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 102 “Share based payments”, the Company receiving
the services shall measure the services received as an equity sewled transaction and required 1o record compensation cost and disclose information relating 1o the shares granted to the
employees of the Company, under the above Plan, Since, the plan is assessed, managed and administered by the ultimate helding company, the Company has taken stock oplion cost
pertains to options granted to the employee of the Company as calculated by the cltimale holding Company under Ind AS 102

4

s

. The Holding Company renders various administzative and management services 1o i1s subsidiary comapanies to facilitate the day-to-day operations, Accordingly, the ultimate holding
Company has charged INR 16.15 million (31 March 2021: INR 14.79 million) towards such services rendered during the year ended March 31, 2022

45, Impact of COVID ~19

The outhreak of Coronavirus {COVID-19) pandemic globally is causing a slowdown in ecanomic activity inciuding India.

The company has adapted to challenges brough in by COVIN-19 related pandemic in FY 2021-22 and has been able lo improve its cash flow & inventory management. The company has
also brough in efficiency such as by cutling manpower costs, bringing down cost of pouds sold, lease costs and other overheads, Company has alsa been able 1o improve its collections and
cxpects (o recover carrying amount of all its financials assets and does not foresee downesizing in operations in FY 2022-23 in comparison with FY 2021-22. The management has

assessed that it will be able to reatize the collections an timely basis despite COVID 19 challenges and would be abie to arrange sufficient working capital facilities from banks/ financial
intuitions, if required, 10 ensure centinuity of operations,

IRuN
There have been no material changes in the controls or processes followed in the financial siatements closing process of the conrpany, 'Fltaf!gmapmﬁlﬁiuﬁ‘lx&t fﬁ‘,},onilor any fulure
changes to the business and financial statemnents due to COVID-19 FOY New Saraswa | .
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New Saraswati House (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the period ended 31st March 2022
CIN: U22110DL20I3PTC262320

46. The Company does not hold any benami

property under the Benami Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and no prececding has been initiated or is pending against the Company for
holding any berami property.

47. The Company has not surrendercd or disclosed any tweome during the year in the tax assessments ander the Income Tax Act, 1961,

48. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, where mecessary, (o confonn 1o this year's classification,

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements,
As per our repert of even date

For P Chawla & Co, LLP
ICAl Firm Registraticn No. 001875N/N500025
Chartered Accountants
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per Richa Chawla
Partner
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